
01/28/2020 

Page 1 of 1 

BOARD OF REGENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN SYSTEM 
 

I. All Regents 
Thursday, February 6, 2020 
1:00 p.m.  

Varsity Hall II, 2nd Floor, Union South 
1308 W. Dayton Street 

Madison, Wisconsin 

 
1. Calling of the Roll 

 
2. Updates and Introductions 

 
3. Host-campus Presentation by Rebecca Blank, Chancellor, UW-Madison: “How UW-

Madison is Navigating the Rapidly Changing World of Higher Education” 
 

4. Presentation and Discussion:  Wisconsin’s Achievement/Opportunity Gap Challenges 
 

5. Closed Session – Varsity Hall I 
Move into closed session to: 

A. Consider strategies for crime detection and prevention as permitted under s. 
19.85(1)(d), Wis. Stats. 

B. Confer with legal counsel regarding potential litigation in which it is likely to 
become involved regarding contracts, as permitted by s. 19.85(1)(g), Wis. 
Stats. 
 

The closed session agenda also may be considered on Friday, February 7, 2020, as the Board’s 
needs may dictate. In addition, the Board may reconvene in open session regarding matters 
taken up in the closed session, including voting, where applicable.  
 
 
 



Page 1 of 4 

I. All Regents  
Thursday, February 6, 2020 

Item 4. 
 

 

WISCONSIN’S ACHIEVEMENT/OPPORTUNITY GAP CHALLENGES 
 
 
REQUESTED ACTION 
 
For information only. 
 
 
SUMMARY  
 
The achievement gap between white students and underrepresented minority students is a 
national issue with significant moral and economic consequences. Wisconsin’s challenges 
are significant.   
 
The Board will hear multiple presentations that will allow members to learn about the 
extent of the issue as well as to what can and should be done to address it. 
 
The first presentation is led by Tim Sheehy, President of the Metropolitan Milwaukee 
Association of Commerce (MMAC). His presentation will focus on regional efforts to 
address the achievement gap and its real-life and long-term implications for workforce 
challenges in Wisconsin. The presentation will discuss efforts MMAC has made with 
regional employers to encourage a diversified workforce, and how UW System, as part of 
the educational pipeline, is vital to that goal.   
 
Tim Renick, Senior Vice President for Enrollment and Student Success at Georgia State 
University, will address evidence-based ways to address the achievement gap, including 
more intentional use of advisors (precollege and on campus) and what resources it takes to 
make significant progress.  
 
Dr. Angela Byars-Winston will then present on national STEMM (science, technology, 
engineering, mathematics, and medical) mentoring programs and practices at 
undergraduate and graduate levels. Dr. Byars-Winston is the first African American to 
achieve the rank of tenured Professor in the Department of Medicine at UW-Madison. She 
investigates the impact of culture on career development for women and 
underrepresented racial/ethnic groups in STEMM fields. Dr. Byars-Winston will discuss her 
research, evidence-informed effective and inclusive mentorship, and implications for policy 
and practice.   
 
 



Page 2 of 4 

Regent Eve Hall, President and CEO of the Milwaukee Urban League, will moderate a 
strategic discussion on opportunities to mitigate achievement gaps with all the presenters.  
 
Presenters 
 

• Tim Sheehy, President, Metropolitan Milwaukee Association of Commerce 
• Tim Renick, Senior Vice President for Enrollment and Student Success, Georgia State 

University 
• Dr. Angela Byars-Winston, Professor, Department of Medicine, UW-Madison 
•  (Panel Moderator) Regent Eve Hall, President and CEO, Milwaukee Urban League 

 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
The achievement gap between white students and underrepresented minority (URM) 
students is a national challenge, which is even greater in Wisconsin. A 2016 report from the 
National Center for Education Statistics found that among first-time, full-time 
undergraduate students who began seeking a bachelor’s degree at a 4-year degree 
granting institution in fall 2007, the 6-year graduation rate was 63% for white students and 
41% for both African American students and American Indian/Alaska native students, a 
22% gap. (https://nces.ed.gov/pubs2016/2016007.pdf) 
 
Gaps also exist between all underrepresented minority groups and white students and 
students who qualify for Pell grants because of their low-income status. 
 
UW System: Achievement Gap 
 

• In the last 10 years, the 6-year graduation rate gap between African American and 
white students has increased: 

o 32.0% of 2002 African American freshman enrollees graduated in 6 years 
compared to 60.7% of white freshman, a gap of 28.7 points; 

o 35.5% of 2012 African American freshman enrollees graduated in 6 years 
compared to 65.4% of white freshman, a gap of 29.9 points. 
 

• Of freshman enrollees in 2012: 
o 45.6% of underrepresented minorities graduated in 6 years compared to 

65.6% of non-underrepresented minorities; 
o 51.5% of Pell grant recipients graduated in 6 years compared to 68.0% of 

non-Pell grant recipients. 
 

• The retention rate (year 1 to year 2) gap between African American and white 
students remains in double digits despite closing slightly: 

https://nces.ed.gov/pubs2016/2016007.pdf


Page 3 of 4 

o 67.4% of African American freshmen in 2007 enrolled the next year 
compared to 79.7% of white freshman, a gap of 12.3 points 

o 70.9% of African American freshmen in 2017 enrolled the next year 
compared to 82.3% of white freshman, a gap of 11.4 points 
 

• The retention rate gap: 
o Widened between Pell and non-Pell recipients, from 6.8 points in 2007 to 7.5 

points in 2017 
o Widened between underrepresented minorities and other students, from 6.6 

points in 2007 to 7.1 points in 2017 
 
Dr. Angela Byars-Winston is an Associate Director of the Collaborative Center for Health 
Equity, tenured Professor in the UW Department of Medicine, Director of Research and 
Evaluation in the UW Center for Women’s Health Research, and Faculty Lead in the Center 
for the Improvement of Mentored Experiences in Research. Her research examines cultural 
influences on academic and career development, especially for historically minoritized 
groups in the sciences, engineering, and medicine with the aim of broadening their 
participation in STEMM fields.  
 
Timothy Renick is Senior Vice President for Student Success and Professor of Religious 
Studies at Georgia State University. At Georgia State, he has served as Chair of the 
Department of Religious Studies and Director of the Honors Program. Since 2008, he has 
directed the student success and enrollment efforts of the university, overseeing among 
the fastest improving graduation rates in the nation and the elimination of all achievement 
gaps based on students' race, ethnicity, or income level.   
 
Timothy R. Sheehy is President of the Metropolitan Milwaukee Association of Commerce 
(MMAC). Prior to being named president, he served as Executive Vice President. He also 
serves on the board of the Milwaukee Development Corporation, an MMAC affiliate and is 
a past Chair of the Association of Chamber of Commerce Executives. Sheehy serves as 
Chair of the Milwaukee Economic Development Corporation and as a director of the State 
of Wisconsin Investment Board.  
 
Previous Action or Discussion 
 
The UW System Board of Regents in December 2018 entered into a five-year contract with 
the Education Advisory Board (EAB) to use the company’s Navigate Student Success 
Collaborative software to improve undergraduate retention and guide students on a path 
toward graduation, a key goal of UW System President Ray Cross’s 360 Advising initiative.  
 
The software leverages technology to allow advisors, student success staff, and faculty to 
provide more targeted, personalized, and timely support to students. 
 



Page 4 of 4 

Using a system of predictive analytics based on key factors such as class attendance and 
performance, major status, and financial factors, UW System advisors and faculty will be 
able to better build effective support around students and provide them personalized 
guidance at key moments on the path to graduation. Students will be able to access mobile 
planning and career guidance tools to help them connect with campus resources, schedule 
meetings with advisors, and make decisions about their college goals. 



01/31/2020 
 

Page 1 of 2 

BOARD OF REGENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN SYSTEM 
 

II. All Regents 
Friday, February 7, 2020 
9:00 a.m.  

Varsity Hall II, 2nd Floor, Union South 
1308 W. Dayton Street 

Madison, Wisconsin 

 
1. Calling of the Roll 

 
2. Approval of the record of the December 5-6, 2019 meeting of the UW System Board 

of Regents and the January 21, 2020 meeting of the Executive Committee 
 

3. Report of the Board President 
A. Report(s) of the Wisconsin Technical College System Board 
B. Update on the UW-Green Bay chancellor search process 
C. Update on the UW System President search process 
D. Research in the Rotunda 
E. All in Wisconsin 

 
4. Report of the System President 

A. News from Around the UW System 
B. Student spotlight 
C. Tribal consultation 
D. Legislative update 
E. Update on responses to Coronavirus 

 
5. Resolution of appreciation for Regent Emeritus Tony Evers’ service on the UW 

System Board of Regents 
 

6. Report of the Research, Economic Development & Innovation Committee 
 

7. Report of the Audit Committee  
 

8. Report and approval of actions taken by the Business & Finance Committee 
 

9. Report and approval of actions taken by the Education Committee 
 

10. Report and approval of actions taken by the Capital Planning & Budget Committee 
 

11. Presentation of Board of Regents 2020 Diversity Awards 
• Dr. Arijit Sen, UW-Milwaukee – Individual Award 
• Fostering Success, UW-Stout – Program Award 
• Department of Chemistry, UW-Madison – Program Award 



 

Page 2 of 2 

 
12. Presentation:  Annual NCAA Division I Athletics Report – UW-Madison 

 
13. Presentation:  Overview of Wisconsin Public Media 

 
14. Approval of Administrative Code Proposed Rule Order, Economic Impact Analysis 

and Fiscal Estimate, Notice of Submittal to the Legislative Council, and Notice of 
Public Hearing for Ch. UWS 17, Wis. Admin. Code, “Nonacademic Student 
Misconduct.” 
 

15. Approval of Administrative Code Proposed Rule Order, Economic Impact Analysis 
and Fiscal Estimate, Notice of Submittal to the Legislative Council, and Notice of 
Public Hearing for Ch. UWS 18, Wis. Admin. Code, “Conduct on University Lands.” 
 

16. Resolution of appreciation to UW-Madison for hosting the February 2020 meeting 
 

17. Regent communications, petitions, and memorials 
 

18. Optional Closed Session  
 

Adjourn 
 
The closed session agenda for Thursday, February 6, 2020, may also be considered on Friday, 
February 7, 2020, as the Board’s needs may dictate. In addition, the Board may reconvene in 
open session regarding matters taken up in the closed session, including voting, where 
applicable. 



Page 1 of 4 

II. All Regents 
Friday, February 7, 2019 

Item 12. 
 

 
UW-MADISON NCAA DIVISION I ATHLETICS 

2018-19 REPORT 
 
 
REQUESTED ACTION 
 
This item is for discussion purposes only. 
 
 
SUMMARY 
 
UW-Madison sponsors 23 sports, providing more than 800 student-athletes with the 
opportunity to participate in college athletics. The Division of Intercollegiate Athletics 
(Athletics Department) employs nearly 400 full-time staff. UW-Madison is a member of the 
NCAA, a charter member of the Big Ten Conference, and a member of the Western 
Collegiate Hockey Association (WCHA). 
 
The Athletics Department operates as a departmental unit within the University. The 
Chancellor has delegated authority for the day-to-day administration of the intercollegiate 
program to the Athletic Director. UW-Madison’s Athletics Board provides faculty oversight 
to the program as part of UW-Madison’s shared-governance system.   
 
2018-19 Achievements 
 
Seventeen of UW-Madison’s 23 sports advanced to postseason competition. Highlights 
include a fifth national championship for women’s hockey, and the fifth consecutive bowl 
win for football. UW-Madison finished 16th in the Learfield Directors’ Cup, the highest finish 
in the last 25 years. 
 
Financial Situation 
 
The Athletics Department reported $138,115,841 in actual revenues and $137,954,603 in 
expenses in 2018-19, resulting in an operating surplus of $161,237. The report notes that 
the program had an unrestricted fund balance of $2,364,720, or 1.7% of actual 
expenditures for the 2018-19 fiscal year.  UW-Madison also reports the Athletics 



 

Page 2 of 4 

Department had outstanding debt of $83,682,268 as of June 30, 2019, with debt service 
payments of $11,056,168 in the 2018-19 fiscal year.  
 
Academics 
 
The Athletics Department uses various means to monitor the academic progress of 
student-athletes including the Academic Progress Rate, the Graduation Success Rate, and 
the Federal Graduation Rate.  
 
Academic Progress Rate.  The Academic Progress Rate (APR) is a term-by-term calculation 
of the eligibility and retention of all student-athletes. A score of 1000 means every student-
athlete on a particular team remained eligible and returned to school. Teams lose points 
for student-athletes who are not eligible and/or are not retained.  
 
UW-Madison expects all teams to achieve both a single-year and multiyear APR above 930.  
Under NCAA rules, teams must maintain a minimum multiyear APR above 930 to 
participate in postseason competition. 
 
The APR for UW-Madison student-athletes exceeded 930 in all sports in both the single-
year and multiyear measures.  Single-year APRs ranged from 964 to 1000, with nine of 21 
sports teams achieving an APR of 1000.  Multiyear APRs ranged from 974 to 1000, with 
three of 21 teams achieving an APR of 1000. 
 
The APR for the three largest revenue generating sports—football, men’s basketball, and 
men’s hockey—were 974, 981, and 983 respectively, for 2017-18. 
 
Graduation Rates.  UW-Madison uses both the Federal Graduation Rate (FGR) and the 
Graduation Success Rate (GSR) to monitor student-athlete graduation rates.  The FGR is 
compiled by the U.S. Department of Education and measures the percentage of first-time, 
full-time freshmen who graduate within six years of entering their original four-year 
institution. The GSR differs from the FGR in that it excludes from the denominator those 
student-athletes who leave the institution in good academic standing and includes in the 
numerator those who transfer into the institution and go on to graduate. 
 
UW-Madison uses three benchmarks related to the FGR to monitor student-athlete 
graduation rates.  UW-Madison expects student-athletes to maintain an FGR that is equal 
to or greater than the FGR for (1) all UW-Madison students; (2) all student-athletes in the 
Big Ten Conference; and (3) all Division I student-athletes.  UW-Madison student-athletes 
had an FGR of 68% for 2019, a decrease from the FGR of 73% in 2018. The student-athlete 



 

Page 3 of 4 

FGR fell short of the FGR for all UW-Madison students (87%), and Big Ten Conference 
student-athletes (74%) but matched the FGR for all NCAA Division I student-athletes (68%).   
 
UW-Madison monitors student-athletes’ graduation success using two benchmarks related 
to the GSR. UW-Madison expects student-athletes to achieve a GSR (1) equal to or greater 
than the median GSR for the Big Ten Conference; and (2) greater than the GSR of all NCAA 
Division I athletes. In 2018, the GSR for UW-Madison student-athletes was 90%, just under 
the median GSR for the Big Ten Conference (91%), and two percentage points higher than 
the GSR for all NCAA Division I student-athletes (89%).   
 
UW-Madison’s student-athletes carried a 3.14 cumulative grade-point average (GPA) at the 
end of the Spring 2019 term. Between the Fall 2018 and Spring 2019 semesters, a total of 
317 student-athletes earned Academic All-Big Ten honors.  During the 2018-19 academic 
year, 130 student-athletes graduated with either a Bachelor’s or Master’s degree.   
 
NCAA Rules Compliance  
 
The Athletics Department reported no Level I or Level II violations (formerly classified as 
“major” violations) and 21 Level III or Level IV violations (formerly classified as “secondary” 
violations) to the NCAA in 2018-19. UW-Madison’s report includes a detailed list of Level III 
and Level IV violations in Appendix J.   
 
The report includes a copy of the Athletics Department’s Standards for Safeguarding 
Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate Athletics. The Big Ten Council of 
Presidents/Chancellors adopted the standards in response to issues at Penn State 
University. The standards, which went into effect on August 1, 2015, demonstrate a 
commitment by Big Ten institutions to maintaining the “integrity of governance in athletics 
programs.” The report notes that a required internal annual review found that UW-
Madison has maintained compliance with the standards.    
 
The report also includes the transmittal letter and audit comments from the most recent 
NCAA Compliance review conducted by UW-System’s Office of Internal Audit (Appendix H), 
which includes a comment related to lack of tracking unofficial visits by one of the teams. 
The report also includes a copy of the NCAA-required report on “Agreed-Upon Procedures” 
issued by independent auditor Baker Tilly, for the year ended June 30, 2019 (Appendix L).   
 
Presenter(s)  
 

• Barry Alvarez, Director of Athletics, UW-Madison 
• Chris McIntosh, Deputy Athletic Director, UW-Madison 

 
 



 

Page 4 of 4 

BACKGROUND 
 
Collegiate athletics are high-profile activities that exist for the betterment of the student 
body, student-athletes, and the university. As some of the most visible programs at 
institutions of higher education, athletics provide valuable experiences for student-
athletes, opportunities to engage the broader community and a public face for the 
institution. This visibility, as well as the number of student-athlete participants, the 
members of the public attending athletic events and the substantial compliance 
requirements, necessitates a high level of oversight and scrutiny by both administrators 
and governing bodies. 
 
In 2012, the Association of Governing Boards of Colleges and Universities (AGB) issued a 
report, “Trust, Accountability, and Integrity: Board Responsibilities for Intercollegiate 
Athletics,” that highlighted the important role of higher education governing boards in 
providing proper oversight of athletics programs. That same year, the Board of Regents 
established a reporting framework for institutions that participate in NCAA Division I 
athletics.    
 
Under the Regents’ Accountability Reporting Framework, each UW System Division I 
athletics program is required to provide information to the Board annually describing the 
extent to which the program:  1) adheres to any performance standards implemented by 
an institution or its athletic board; 2) safeguards the welfare of all students; 3) maintains 
NCAA compliance; and 4) assures fiscal integrity. The Accountability Reporting Framework 
provides the Board with consistent information about each NCAA Division I athletics 
program, enhancing the Board’s ability to effectively monitor the activities of UW System’s 
Division I athletics programs. 
 
Related Policies  
 

• Regent Policy Document 10-1, “Endorsement of the Statement of Principles from the 
Knight Foundation Commission on Intercollegiate Athletics” 

• Accountability Reporting Framework for Board of Regents Oversight of NCAA 
Intercollegiate Athletics Programs 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS  
 

A) 2018-19 Report to Board of Regents on Intercollegiate Athletics at UW-Madison 
 

https://www.wisconsin.edu/regents/policies/endorsement-of-statement-of-principles-from-the-knight-foundation-commission-on-intercollegiate-athletics/
https://www.wisconsin.edu/regents/policies/endorsement-of-statement-of-principles-from-the-knight-foundation-commission-on-intercollegiate-athletics/
https://www.wisconsin.edu/regents/download/policy_attachment/rpd10-1_AccountabilityReportingFramework.pdf
https://www.wisconsin.edu/regents/download/policy_attachment/rpd10-1_AccountabilityReportingFramework.pdf


2018-19 

REPORT TO BOARD OF REGENTS ON INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETICS 
AT UW-MADISON 

February 6, 2020 



 
 

 

2018-19 Executive Summary to Board of Regents 

Introduction 

This report provides information about University of Wisconsin-Madison intercollegiate athletics for the 
Board of Regents. It addresses fiscal responsibility, academics, and compliance. 

The Athletics Department: Makeup, Mission, & Membership 

The Division of Intercollegiate Athletics, generally referred to as the “Athletics Department,” is a 
departmental unit within the University governed by the policies of UW-Madison (“UW”). While 
retaining ultimate authority, subject to the general oversight of the Board of Regents of the University 
of Wisconsin System, the Chancellor has delegated the authority, responsibility, and accountability for 
the day-to-day administration of intercollegiate athletics to the Athletic Director. There are no 
exceptions to this delegation. The Athletic Board exercises the authority of the faculty as part of the 
University’s shared-governance system.1 

The Athletics Department dedicates itself to the mission of providing athletic opportunities to a wide 
range of students and providing an environment in which all student-athletes can achieve their 
academic and competitive goals. 

The Athletics Department is a member institution of the National Collegiate Athletic Association 
(NCAA), the Big Ten Conference, and the Western Collegiate Hockey Association (WCHA). 
Therefore, the Athletics Department abides by the rules and regulations promulgated by these 
organizations. 

On-Field Achievements 

The UW experienced another successful season in 2018-19. Of the UW’s 23 sports, 17 advanced to 
postseason competition. Headlining the year was a fifth national championship for women’s hockey, 
and the fifth consecutive bowl win for football – a Big Ten record. Individually, UW had an 
unprecedented number of standout performances. Women’s soccer student-athlete Rose Lavelle 
made a splash on the global stage as a standout member of Team USA, the 2018 World Cup 
champions; Beata Nelson was named National Swimmer of the Year; Alicia Monson was a national 
champion in track; and Morgan McDonald won national championships across three sports (cross 
country, indoor track, and outdoor track). In all, UW boasted 37 All-Americans on its way to a 16th-
place finish in the Learfield Directors’ Cup – equaling UW’s highest finish in the last 25 years. 
 
Financial Highlights 
The full report contains the final budget, debt balances and payments, and endowments for the 2018-
19 fiscal year (see Appendices C and D). The annual budget for the Athletics Department supports 23 
sports and more than 800 student-athlete participation opportunities. The Athletics Department 
employs nearly 400 full-time staff. The Athletics Department hosts more than 1.8 million spectators 
each year and its economic impact has been estimated at $610 million annually, with nearly 4,500 
jobs supported and created. There is no deficit from 2018-19 operations. 

 

 

 
1 For a more detailed elaboration on the authority over intercollegiate athletics, please see Appendix A: “University of 
Wisconsin-Madison Standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate Athletics.” These standards 
were prepared in response to the standards adopted by the Big Ten’s Council of Presidents/Chancellors (Appendix B). 



 
 

 

Academic Measures 

The figures presented in the executive summary are also located in each of the corresponding 
sections.  Please refer to later sections if there are questions regarding the sources of this 
information.  

The Athletics Department uses various means to monitor the academic progress of the student-
athletes. The Federal Graduation Rate (FGR), Graduation Success Rate (GSR), and Academic 
Progress Rate (APR) are the most recognizable of these measures. 

The FGR is compiled by the U.S. Department of Education and measures the percentage of first-time, 
full-time freshmen who graduate within six years of entering their original four-year institution. The 
GSR differs from the FGR in that it excludes from the denominator those student-athletes who leave 
the institution in good academic standing and includes in the numerator those who transfer into the 
institution and go on to graduate. Lastly, the APR is a term-by-term calculation of the eligibility and 
retention of all student-athletes. A score of 1,000 means every student-athlete on that particular team 
stayed eligible and returned to school. Teams begin losing points for student-athletes who are not 
eligible and/or are not retained. 

Of the 6 student-athletes in the 2012-13 single-year FGR cohort for the three highest revenue men’s 
and women’s sports who did not graduate from the UW in six years, two transferred to other 
institutions and earned their degrees, two left early to pursue professional opportunities, and two 
student-athletes did not transfer or graduate. 

The APR for UW student-athletes – used by the NCAA to hold institutions accountable for the 
academic progress of their student-athletes – was above 930 in all sports in both the multiyear and 
single year measures. The GSR for UW student-athletes was 90% in 2018-19, which was two 
percentage points higher than the GSR for all NCAA Division I student-athletes (88%). The UW 
student-athlete four-year average FGR was 71% in 2018-19, compared to 75% for the Big Ten 
Conference, and 68% for all NCAA Division I student-athletes. The graduation rate for all UW-
Madison students is 87%. 

The Academic Support staff also utilizes its own additional measures to track success. For example, 
the Athletics Department considers a student-athlete successful who matriculates at UW and receives 
Athletics aid, but graduates from another institution. This rate is compared to that of the general 
student population at both a six- and ten-year mark. 

University of Wisconsin student-athletes carried a 3.14 cumulative grade-point average (GPA) at the 
end of the Spring 2019 term. After the Spring 2019 semester, nine student-athletes carried a perfect 
4.00 cumulative GPA. Between the Fall 2018 and Spring 2019 semesters, a total of 317 student-
athletes earned Academic All-Big Ten honors. 

UW undergraduate student-athletes currently major in 83 diverse areas of study. Personal Finance, 
Economics, Business: Finance, Investment & Banking, Life Sciences Communication, and 
Communication Arts are the most common majors among undergraduate student-athletes. 
Additionally, of these 83 areas of study, there are currently 62 different areas in which 10 or fewer 
student-athletes have declared as majors. A total of 130 student-athletes graduated with either a 
Bachelor’s or Master’s degree during the 2018-19 academic year. 
 
The UW does not employ a special admissions process for student-athletes. Student-athletes 
progress through the admissions process in the same manner as other applicants. The UW utilizes a 
holistic, competitive, and selective admissions review. 
 



 
 

 

Agreed-Upon Procedures & Intercollegiate Athletics Budget Report 

The full report contains reports from an independent auditor on the Athletics Department’s agreed-
upon procedures and budget report for the 2018-19 fiscal year. 

Compliance 

The Athletics Department recently underwent a compliance review by the UW System Administration 
Office of Internal Audit for the 2018-19 academic year. The review identified one compliance matter 
related to the tracking of unofficial visits as an opportunity for improvement. For the full report, see 
Appendix H. 
 
The Athletics Department reported no Level I or Level II violations (formerly classified as “major” 
violations) and 21 Level III or Level IV violations (formerly classified as “secondary” violations) to the 
NCAA and Big Ten in 2018-19. These numbers are consistent with reporting statistics from previous 
years. For a detailed list of reported violations, see Appendix J. 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 

 
INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETICS REPORT 

 
     TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

I. DIVISION OF INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETICS INTRODUCTION 

 A. MISSION OF INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETICS ................................................................................................. 1 
 B. NATIONAL COLLEGIATE ATHLETIC ASSOCIATION ........................................................................................ 2 
 C. HISTORY OF INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETCS ................................................................................................. 2 
 D. ATHLETICS DEPARTMENT ANNUAL REPORT ............................................................................................... 4 
II. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

 A. 2018-19 FINAL BUDGET REPORT (SEE APPENDIX) .................................................................................... 4 
 B. 2018-19 DEBT BALANCES & PAYMENTS REPORT (SEE APPENDIX) ............................................................. 4 
 C. 2018-19 VALUE OF ENDOWMENTS DEDICATED TO SUPPORT ATHLETICS ...................................................... 5 
III. MEASURES & BENCHMARKS USED TO ASSESS STUDENT-ATHLETE ACADEMIC PROGRESS 

 A. ACADEMIC PROGRESS RATE ..................................................................................................................... 5 
 B. GRADUATION SUCCESS RATE ................................................................................................................... 6 
 C. FEDERAL GRADUATION RATE .................................................................................................................... 7 
 D. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: GPA & MAJORS .............................................................................................. 8 
 E. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: SPECIAL ADMISSIONS OF STUDENT-ATHLETES .................................................. 9 
IV. COMPLIANCE PROCEDURES REVIEW 

 A. SEE APPENDIX ......................................................................................................................................... 9 
V. NCAA SELF STUDY REPORT 

 A. SEE APPENDIX ......................................................................................................................................... 9 
VI. LIST OF LEVEL III & LEVEL IV NCAA VIOLATIONS & NCAA OVERSIGHT CERTIFICATION LETTER 

 A. SEE APPENDIX ......................................................................................................................................... 9 
VII. AGREED UPON PROCEDURES & INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETICS BUDGET REPORT 

 A. SEE APPENDIX ......................................................................................................................................... 9 
 TABLE OF APPENDICES ....................................................................................................................................... 10  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



1 
 

 
INTRODUCTION 

 
The purpose of this report is to provide annual information of intercollegiate athletics and the functions 
outlined by the Faculty Senate to the Board of Regents. In the first section, information is provided 
about the NCAA, the Big Ten, and the Intercollegiate Athletics Department. The subsequent sections 
outline specific information addressing academics, fiscal responsibility, and compliance regulation. 

 
I. DIVISION OF INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETICS 

 
The Division of Intercollegiate Athletics, generally referred to as the “Athletics Department,” is a 
departmental unit within the University governed by the policies of the University of Wisconsin-
Madison (“UW”). While retaining ultimate authority subject to the general oversight of the Board of 
Regents of the University of Wisconsin System, the Chancellor has delegated the authority, 
responsibility, and accountability for the day-to-day administration of intercollegiate athletics to the 
Athletic Director. There are no exceptions to this delegation. The Athletic Board exercises the 
authority of the faculty as part of the UW’s shared-governance system.2 

A.  Mission of Intercollegiate Athletics  
 
The Athletics Department dedicates itself to the mission of providing athletic opportunities to a wide 
range of students and creating an environment in which all student-athletes can achieve their 
academic and competitive goals. The Athletics Department strives to provide equitable opportunities 
for all student-athletes and staff regardless of gender or ethnic backgrounds. To honor its academic 
mission and that of the UW, the Athletics Department supports the educational aspirations, academic 
progress, and general welfare of the student-athlete. In competition, the Athletics Department fosters 
principles of sportsmanship, respect, fair play, and athletic excellence. In all of its activities, the 
Athletics Department insists on integrity, ethical conduct, and accountability. 
 
The Athletics Department’s mission on behalf of the…  
 

• Student-Athletes - Provide the resources for student-athletes to pursue their academic and 
athletic dreams, while shaping their development into adulthood.  

 
• University - Operate all areas of the Athletics Department with class and quality while 

accepting our role as a source of school spirit and pride for all faculty, staff, students, and 
alumni of the UW.  

 
• Citizens of the State - Support the community by participating in a variety of public service 

projects, hosting events that provide good entertainment and contribute positively to the 
economy, and serving as a source of state pride through the academic achievement of our 
student-athletes and successful performance in their athletic pursuits.  

 
This mission is derived from the overall mission of the UW to provide the opportunity for highest 
achievement in all areas of human knowledge and endeavor: intellectual, artistic, and physical. 
Intercollegiate athletics is a part of the UW’s total educational purpose: (1) through values; (2) through 
diversity and outreach; (3) through cultural appreciation; and (4) through physical human 
development. In addition to these four explicit interactions with the UW’s purpose, intercollegiate 
athletics is aligned with the UW’s mission through tradition. 
 
 

 
2 For a more detailed elaboration on the authority over intercollegiate athletics, please see Appendix A: “University of 
Wisconsin-Madison Standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate Athletics.” These standards 
were prepared in response to the standards adopted by the Big Ten’s Council of Presidents/Chancellors (Appendix B). 



2 
 

 
B. National Collegiate Athletic Association (NCAA) 
 
The colleges, universities, and conferences, referred to as “members,” make up the NCAA. The 
members appoint volunteer representatives who serve on committees that introduce and vote on rules 
called bylaws. The members also establish programs to govern, promote, and further the purposes 
and goals of intercollegiate athletics.  
 
Approximately 500 paid professionals who implement the rules and programs established by the 
membership make up the “national office.” The national office staff is located primarily at the NCAA 
headquarters office in Indianapolis, Indiana. The entire organization, comprised of members and 
staffs, is referred to as the NCAA. 
 
The NCAA's core ideology consists of two notions: core purpose – the organization's reason for being 
– and core values – essential and enduring principles that guide the organization. Its purpose is to 
govern competition in a fair, safe, equitable, and sportsmanlike manner and to integrate intercollegiate 
athletics into higher education so that the educational experience of the student-athlete is paramount. 
The NCAA – through its member institutions, conferences, and national office staff – shares a belief in 
and commitment to: 
 

• The collegiate model of athletics in which students participate as an avocation, 
balancing their academic, social, and athletics experiences. 

 
• The highest levels of integrity and sportsmanship. 

 
• The pursuit of excellence in both academics and athletics. 
 
• The supporting role that intercollegiate athletics plays in the higher education mission 

and in enhancing the sense of community and strengthening the identity of member 
institutions. 

 
• An inclusive culture that fosters equitable participation for student-athletes and career 

opportunities for coaches and administrators from diverse backgrounds. 
 

• Respect for institutional autonomy and philosophical differences. 
 

• Presidential leadership of intercollegiate athletics at the campus, conference, and 
national levels. 

 
For more information regarding the NCAA, visit http://www.ncaa.org/. 
 
C.  History of Intercollegiate Athletics 
 
The creation of athletic teams occurred just 25 years after the UW was founded in 1848. By the end of 
the 19th century, the UW joined six other schools to form the Western Conference (now known as the 
Big Ten Conference). As a charter member of the Big Ten, the UW has a long and proud athletic 
history. 
 
Men’s sports dominated the scene at the UW until the late 1960s when women’s athletics began to 
grow. Naming Kit Saunders as the administrator of the women’s sports program in 1967 and the 
enactment of Title IX of the Educational Amendments Act of 1972 both helped vault UW women’s 
athletics into the mainstream. That movement, along with the growing popularity of sports on college 
campuses around the nation, catapulted the Athletics Department into the college culture. 
 
 

http://www2.ncaa.org/


3 
 

 
Today, the UW sponsors 23 sports programs supporting approximately 900 student-athlete 
participation opportunities at any given time, depending on roster changes. The UW experienced 
another successful season in 2018-19. Of the UW’s 23 sports, 17 advanced to postseason 
competition. Headlining the year was a fifth national championship for women’s hockey, and the fifth 
consecutive bowl win for football – a Big Ten record. Individually, UW had an unprecedented number 
of standout performances. Women’s soccer student-athlete Rose Lavelle made a splash on the global 
stage as a standout member of Team USA, the 2018 World Cup champions; Beata Nelson was 
named National Swimmer of the Year; Alicia Monson was a national champion in track; and Morgan 
McDonald won national championships across three sports (cross country, indoor track, and outdoor 
track). In all, UW boasted 37 All-Americans on its way to a 16th-place finish in the Learfield Directors’ 
Cup – equaling UW’s highest finish in the last 25 years. 
 
For more information regarding the Athletics Department, visit www.uwbadgers.com. 
 
The Athletics Department is a member institution of the National Collegiate Athletic Association 
(NCAA), the Big Ten Conference, and the Western Collegiate Hockey Association (WCHA). 
Therefore, the Athletics Department abides by the rules and regulations promulgated by these 
organizations. 
 
Big Ten Conference 
 
The Big Ten Conference is an association of 14 world-class universities whose member institutions 
share a common mission of research, graduate, professional, and undergraduate teaching, and public 
service. Intercollegiate athletics has an important place within the Big Ten’s common mission. 
Conference institutions sponsor broad-based athletic programs supporting more than 300 teams. 
 
Founded in 1896, the Big Ten Conference has sustained a comprehensive set of shared practices 
and policies that enforce the priority of academics in student-athletes’ lives and emphasize the values 
of integrity, fairness, and competitiveness. Big Ten universities provide nearly $200 million in athletic 
scholarship aid to more than 9,500 men and women student-athletes who compete for 28 
championships – 14 for men and 14 for women.  
 
The Big Ten Conference institutions provide an avenue for thousands of young men and women to 
pursue higher education while competing in sport. The Big Ten Conference sponsors the following 28 
sports: 
 

Men's Sports 
Baseball 
Basketball 
Cross Country 
Football 
Golf 
Gymnastics 
Ice Hockey 
Lacrosse 
Soccer 
Swimming & Diving 
Tennis 
Indoor Track & Field 
Outdoor Track & Field 
Wrestling 

  Women's Sports 
Basketball 
Cross Country 
Field Hockey 
Golf 
Gymnastics 
Lacrosse 
Rowing 
Soccer 
Softball 
Swimming & Diving 
Tennis 
Indoor Track & Field 
Outdoor Track & Field 
Volleyball 

 
 

http://www.uwbadgers.com/


4 
 

 
For more information regarding the Big Ten Conference, visit www.bigten.org.    
 
Western Collegiate Hockey Association (WCHA) 
 
The Big Ten Conference does not sponsor women’s hockey; thus the Athletics Department is a 
member of the Western Collegiate Hockey Association (WCHA).  
 
From the WCHA’s founding days as the Midwest Collegiate Hockey League (MCHL) from 1951-53, as 
the Western Intercollegiate Hockey League (WIHL) from 1953-58, and ultimately as the Western 
Collegiate Hockey Association in 1959, this prestigious association has maintained a tradition of 
excellence that is second to none. With a noteworthy past that spans seven decades, three overriding 
characteristics that have continued to define the WCHA over its existence are history, tradition, and 
success. 
 
For more information regarding the WCHA, visit http://www.wcha.com/.  
 
D.  Athletics Department Annual Report 
 
On a yearly basis the Athletics Department creates an Annual Report that provides an overview of the 
Athletics Department’s accomplishments and progress towards specific performance goals. The 
Athletics Department has embraced the following core values to guide future decision making: 
 

EXCELLENCE  
in Academics and Athletic Competition 

 
COMMITMENT 

to Fiscal Responsibility, Compliance, and Diversity and Gender Equity 
 

PERSONAL DEVELOPMENT 
of Student-Athletes  

 
SERVICE AND CONNECTION 
to Community and Campus 

 
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT 

of Staff 
 

RECOGNITION 
of Department Success 

 
The 2018-19 report is found online at https://issuu.com/uwathletics/docs/1819annualreport. 
 

II. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 

A. 2018-19 Final Budget Report 
 
Please see Appendix C for the detailed report. 
 
B. 2018-19 Debt Balances & Payments Report 
 
Please see Appendix D for the detailed report. 
 
 

http://www.bigten.org/
http://www.wcha.com/
https://issuu.com/uwathletics/docs/1819annualreport


5 
 

 
C. 2018-19 Value of Endowments Dedicated to Support Athletics 
 

 Market Value Cash/Interest  
June 2019 $109,354,864 $3,734,608 
June 2018 $97,998,613 $2,982,223 

 
III. MEASURES & BENCHMARKS USED TO ASSESS STUDENT-ATHLETE ACADEMIC 

PROGRESS 
 
A. Measure 1: Academic Progress Rate (APR) 
 
Please see Appendix E for the detailed NCAA 2017-18 report. **The 2017-18 NCAA report is the 
most current publicly available data. 
 
Definition: A term-by-term calculation of the eligibility and retention of all student-athletes. Each 
student-athlete receiving athletically related financial aid earns one retention point for staying in 
school and one eligibility point for being academically eligible. A team’s total points are divided by 
points possible and then multiplied by one thousand to equal the team’s Academic Progress Rate 
score. 
 
Benchmark: Achieve a multiyear Academic Progress Rate (APR) above 930 for all sports. 
Benchmark: Achieve a single-year Academic Progress Rate (APR) above 930 for all sports. 

 
Number of Sports with a Multiyear APR below 930 

 
Year APR < 930 
2018 0 sports 
2017 0 sports 
2016 

 
0 sports 

 
APR by Sport 

 
Single-Year  =  2017-18 academic year 
Multiyear  =  2014-15, 2015-16, 2016-17, 2017-18 (avg. of single-year rates) 

 
Men’s Sports Single-Year APR Multiyear APR Multiyear DI 

NCAA Sport APR 
Basketball 981 980 967 
Cross Country 1,000 988 982 
Football 974 979 964 
Golf 1,000 974 985 
Hockey 983 982 986 
Rowing - - - 
Soccer 968 996 979 
Swimming & Diving 1,000 992 982 
Tennis 1,000 1,000 983 
Track (I/O) 982 977 973 
Wrestling 1,000 994 976 

 
 



6 
 

 
Women’s Sports Single-Year APR Multiyear APR Multiyear DI 

NCAA Sport APR 
Basketball 982 996 982 
Cross Country 1,000 1,000 989 
Golf 1,000 1,000 991 
Hockey 979 987 991 
Rowing 995 998 989 
Soccer 990 997 989 
Softball 1,000 996 986 
Swimming & Diving 992 993 993 
Tennis 971 993 990 
Track (I/O) 983 987 983 
Volleyball 1,000 995 987 

 
Three-Year single-year APR trend for the three largest revenue-generating sports 

 Football M. Basketball M. Hockey 
2017-2018 974 981 983 
2016-2017 978 1,000 991 
2015-2016 985 1,000 991 

B. Measure 2: Graduation Success Rate (GSR) 
 
Please see Appendix F for the most recent published report. 
 
Definition: The percentage of first-time, full-time freshmen who graduate within six years of entering 
their original four-year institution, excluding from the denominator those student-athletes who leave 
the institution in good academic standing and including in the numerator those who transfer into the 
institution and go on to graduate. 
 
Benchmark: Achieve a GSR for student-athletes that is equal to or greater than the median GSR for 
the Big Ten Conference. Note: 2019 reporting year represents multi-year GSR of 2009-2012 cohorts. 

 
UW Student-Athletes vs. Median of Big Ten Conference 

 
Year UW S-A  Big Ten S-A 
2019 90% 91% 
2018 90% 90% 
2017 86% 89% 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



7 
 

 
Benchmark: Achieve a GSR for student-athletes that is equal to or greater than the GSR for all 
NCAA Division I student-athletes. Note: 2019 reporting year represents multi-year GSR of 2009-2012 
cohorts. 
 

UW Student-Athletes vs. All Division I Student-Athletes 
 

Year UW S-A  D1 S-A 
2019 90% 88% 
2018 90% 87% 
2017 86% 86% 

 
C. Measure 3: Federal Graduation Rate  
 
Definition: The percentage of first-time, full-time freshmen who graduate within six years of entering 
their original four-year institution. 
 
Three-Year single-year Federal Graduation Rate Trend for the Three Highest Revenue Men’s 
Sports* 

 Football Basketball Hockey 
2018-2019 (2012-2013 Cohort) 88% 50% 67% 
2017-2018 (2011-2012 Cohort) 89% 25% 43% 
2016-2017 (2010-2011 Cohort) 65% 100% 80% 

 
Three-Year single-year Federal Graduation Rate Trend for the Three Highest Revenue 
Women’s Sports* 

 Basketball Hockey Volleyball 
2018-2019 (2012-2013 Cohort) 80% 88% 100% 
2017-2018 (2011-2012 Cohort) 50% 100% 100% 
2016-2017 (2010-2011 Cohort) 67% 80% 75% 

 
*There were 36 student-athletes in the 2012-2013 single-year FGR cohort for the three highest revenue 
men’s and women’s sports. Thirty of these student-athletes graduated from the UW in six years; of the 
other six, two transferred to other institutions and earned their degrees, two left early to pursue 
professional opportunities, and two student-athletes did not transfer or graduate. 
 
Benchmark: Achieve a student-athlete graduation rate that is equal to or greater than the rate for all 
UW-Madison students. Note: The 2019 reporting year represents 2012-13 entering freshman cohort. 
The four-class average combines the current cohort with the three previous freshman classes, using 
date from previous years. 
 

UW Student-Athletes vs. All UW Madison Students 
 

  Graduation Rate Four-Class Average 
Year UW S-A UW UW S-A UW 
2019 68% 87% 71% 86% 
2018 73% 87% 72% 86% 
2017 68% 85% 70% 85% 

 



8 
 

 
Benchmark: Achieve a student-athlete graduation rate that is equal to or greater than the rate for the 
Big Ten Conference. Note: The 2019 reporting year represents 2012-13 entering freshman cohort. The 
four-class average combines the current cohort with the three previous freshman classes, using date 
from previous years. 

 
UW Student-Athletes vs. Median of Big Ten Conference 

 
  Graduation Rate Four-Class Average 
Year UW S-A Big Ten S-A UW S-A Big Ten S-A 
2019 68% 74% 71% 75% 
2018 73% 76% 72% 74% 
2017 68% 76% 70% 73% 

 
Benchmark: Achieve a student-athlete graduation rate that is equal to or greater than the rate for all 
Division I student-athletes. Note: The 2019 reporting year represents 2012-13 entering freshman cohort. 
The four-class average combines the current cohort with the three previous freshman classes, using 
date from previous years. 
 

UW Student-Athletes vs. All NCAA Division I Student-Athletes 
 

  Graduation Rate Four-Class Average 
Year UW S-A D1 S-A UW S-A D1 S-A 
2019 68% 68% 71% 68% 
2018 73% 68% 72% 67% 
2017 68% 68% 70% 67% 

 
D. Additional Information: GPA & Major Selection 
 
UW student-athletes carried a 3.14 cumulative grade-point average (GPA) at the end of the Spring 
2019 term. After the Spring 2019 semester, nine student-athletes carried a perfect 4.00 cumulative 
GPA. Between the Fall 2018 and Spring 2019 semesters, a total of 317 student- athletes earned 
Academic All-Big Ten honors.  
 
UW undergraduate student-athletes currently major in 83 diverse areas of study. Personal Finance, 
Economics, Business: Finance, Investment & Banking, Life Sciences Communication, and 
Communication Arts are the most common majors among undergraduate student-athletes. 
Additionally, of these 83 areas of study, there are currently 62 different areas in which 10 or fewer 
student-athletes have declared as majors. A total of 130 student-athletes graduated with either a 
Bachelor’s or Master’s degree during the 2018-19 academic year. 
 
For a full list of majors, please see Appendix G. This chart is a breakdown of student-athletes’ 
declared majors (by percentage) compared against the percentage of UW students who are majoring 
in each of those areas. The categories of majors were predetermined by the report of major 
breakdowns that is produced by the UW-Madison Registrar’s Office. The total number of student-
athlete majors is representative of the number of majors rather than the number of student-athletes, 
because a student-athlete with a declared double major is counted twice.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



9 
 

 
E. Additional Information: Special Admissions of Student-Athletes 
 
The UW does not employ a special admissions process for student-athletes. Student-athletes 
progress through the admissions process in the same manner as other applicants. The UW utilizes a 
holistic, competitive, and selective admissions review. The Athletics Department’s goal is to recruit, 
admit, and enroll a high quality and diverse student body. The academic record always comes first in 
our review, but we also consider written statements, standardized test scores, extracurricular 
activities, leadership involvement, and optional letters of recommendation. 

 
IV. COMPLIANCE PROCEDURES REVIEW 

 
Please see Appendix H for the full audit report issued by the UW System Administration Office of 
Internal Audit for the 2018-19 academic year. 
 

V. NCAA SELF-STUDY REPORT 
 

The NCAA self-study report requirement no longer exists. In lieu of this report, please see Appendix I 
for the UW’s 2018-19 review of the effectiveness of its Standards for Safeguarding Institutional 
Governance of Intercollegiate Athletics, as required by the Big Ten Conference. 

 
VI. LIST OF LEVEL III & LEVEL IV NCAA VIOLATIONS & NCAA OVERSIGHT CERTIFICATION 

LETTER 
 

Please see Appendix J for the detailed report, and Appendix K for the letter. 
 

VII. AGREED UPON PROCEDURES REPORT & INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETIC BUDGET 
REPORT 

 
Please see Appendix L for the full report. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



10 
 

 
TABLE OF APPENDICES 

 
A.  UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN-MADISON STANDARDS FOR SAFEGUARDING INSTITUTIONAL GOVERNANCE OF INTERCOLLEGIATE 

ATHLETICS .................................................................................................................................................................. 11 
 

B.  THE BIG TEN CONFERENCE STANDARDS FOR SAFEGUARDING INSTITUTIONAL GOVERNANCE OF INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETICS
 ................................................................................................................................................................................. 19 

 
C.  2018-19 UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN ATHLETICS DEPARTMENT FINAL BUDGET REPORT .................................................... 27 
 
D.  2018-19 UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN ATHLETICS DEPARTMENT DEBT BALANCES & PAYMENTS REPORT ............................. 28 
 
E.  2017-18 NCAA ACADEMIC PROGRESS RATE PUBLIC REPORT ........................................................................................ 29 

 
F.  2009-12 COHORTS GRADUATION SUCCESS RATE REPORT ............................................................................................. 32 
 
G.  2018-19 STUDENT-ATHLETE MAJOR ANALYSIS .............................................................................................................. 33 
 
H. COMPLIANCE PROCEDURES REVIEW BY UW SYSTEM ADMINISTRATION OFFICE OF INTERNAL AUDIT ................................... 35 
 
I. 2018-19 REPORT ON STANDARDS FOR SAFEGUARDING INSTITUTIONAL GOVERNANCE OF COLLEGE ATHLETICS ................... 38 
 
J. 2018-19 NCAA VIOLATION REPORT  ............................................................................................................................ 58 

 
K. 2018-19 NCAA OVERSIGHT CERTIFICATION LETTER ..................................................................................................... 59 
 
L. AGREED UPON PROCEDURES REPORT & INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETIC BUDGET REPORT ................................................... 60 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



11 
 

Appendix A 

 



12 
 

 



13 
 

 



14 
 

 



15 
 

 



16 
 

 



17 
 

 



18 
 

 
 
 

 



19 
 

Appendix B 

 



20 
 

 



21 
 

 



22 
 

 



23 
 

 



24 
 

 



25 
 

 



26 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 



27 
 

Appendix C 
 

2018-19 Wisconsin Athletics Budget Report 
 

  2018-19 
Budget Actual 

REVENUE     
Concessions & Catering $5,070,000 $5,411,720 
Conference Distributions $53,286,000 $54,487,742 
Events $4,005,500 $4,769,153 
Gift Funds $27,775,000 $17,800,000 
Multi Media $18,515,000 $18,796,849 
Other Revenue $10,572,600 $11,954,544 
Post Season $2,600,000 $2,690,608 
Ticket Sales $31,670,000 $32,003,376 
Transfers to Institution ($9,800,100) ($9,798,150) 

TOTAL REVENUE $143,694,000 $138,115,841 
EXPENSE     
All Salaries & Fringe Benefits $59,157,644 $55,864,348 
Capital Projects $12,598,000 $10,683,561 
Debt Service $11,153,093 $11,056,168 
Financial Aid $11,500,000 $10,007,993 
Operational Expenses $46,137,633 $47,284,094 
Post Season Participation $3,000,000 $3,058,439 

TOTAL EXPENSE $143,546,390 $137,954,603 
NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) $147,610 $161,237 

   
There is no deficit from 2018-19 operations  
 

  
Ending Cash Balance $2,364,720   
(Unrestricted Fund Balance)   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 



28 
 

Appendix D 
 

2018-19 University of Wisconsin Athletics Department Debt Balances & Payments Report 
 

Project Outstanding Debt, as of 6/30/19 Debt Service 
Payment FY ‘19 

Kohl Center 73,260 70,627 
Goodman Softball Complex 0 51,880 
Camp Randall Stadium Renovation 28,584,510 6,908,734 
Crew House 1,981,261 476,859 
Nielsen Tennis Stadium Floor 1,786 980 
University Ridge Golf Course 96,777 9,976 
Hockey/Swimming Facility 7,500,788 554,614 
Student Athlete Performance 
Center 45,443,886 2,982,499 

   
Total Debt Service - GO Bonds 83,682,268 11,056,168 

 

 

 

 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

   
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



29 
 

Appendix E

 



30 
 

 



31 
 

 
 
 
 



32 
 

Appendix F 
 

 
 



33 
 

Appendix G 
 

UW Student-Athlete Majors vs. UW Student Body Majors (as of 8/7/19) 
 

Major # S-A 
Majors* 

S-A % # UW  
Majors* 

UW % 

Agricultural & Applied Economics 5 0.68% 53 0.15% 
Agricultural Business Management 11 1.50% 72 0.21% 
Agronomy 1 0.14% 21 0.06% 
Animal Sciences 3 0.41% 147 0.43% 
Art  3 0.41% 217 0.63% 
Astronomy-Physics 2 0.27% 72 0.21% 
Biochemistry  6 0.82% 597 1.74% 
Biological Systems Engineering** 5 0.68% 219 0.63% 
Biology 20 2.73% 1,199 3.49% 
Biomedical Engineering 8 1.09% 530 1.54% 
Bus: Accounting  4 0.55% 443 1.29% 
Bus: Actuarial Science 3 0.41% 264 0.77% 
Bus: Finance, Investment & Banking  40 5.46% 1,171 3.41% 
Bus: International Business 6 0.82% 145 0.42% 
Bus: Management & Human Resources 19 2.60% 394 1.15% 
Bus: Marketing 18 2.46% 740 2.16% 
Bus: Operations & Technology Management 2 0.27% 161 0.47% 
Bus: Real Estate & Urban Land Economics 17 2.32% 471 1.37% 
Bus: Risk Management & Insurance 7 0.96% 333 0.97% 
Chemical Engineering 4 0.55% 546 1.59% 
Chemistry  4 0.55% 213 0.62% 
Civil and Environmental Engineering MS* 1 0.14% - - 
Civil Engineering 11 1.50% 407 1.19% 
Classical Humanities 4 0.55% 33 0.10% 
Communication Arts  34 4.64% 692 2.02% 
Communication Sciences & Disorders** 7 0.96% 200 0.58% 
Community & Environmental Sociology  1 0.14% 61 0.18% 
Community & Nonprofit Leadership 9 1.23% 148 0.43% 
Computer Engineering 2 0.27% 410 1.20% 
Computer Sciences 13 1.78% 1,792 5.22% 
Conservation Biology 3 0.41% 135 0.39% 
Economics 41 5.60% 1,129 3.29% 
Education Studies 2 0.27% 72 0.21% 
Educational Leadership & Policy Analysis MS* 3 0.41% - - 
Electrical Engineering 4 0.55% 421 1.23% 
Elementary Education** 5 0.68% 274 0.80% 
Engineering Mechanics 2 0.27% 183 0.53% 
English 3 0.41% 371 1.08% 
Environmental Sciences 3 0.41% 162 0.47% 
Environmental Studies  11 1.50% 256 0.75% 
Food Science 2 0.27% 103 0.30% 
Gender and Women’s Studies 1 0.14% 82 0.24% 



34 
 

Major # S-A 
Majors* 

S-A % # UW  
Majors* 

UW % 

Genetics & Genomics 5 0.68% 353 1.03% 
Geography 2 0.27% 78 0.23% 
Geological Engineering 3 0.41% 74 0.22% 
Geology & Geophysics 3 0.41% 110 0.32% 
German 1 0.14% 42 0.12% 
History  10 1.37% 329 0.96% 
Human Development & Family Studies 23 3.14% 415 1.21% 
Industrial Engineering  10 1.37% 366 1.07% 
Interior Architecture** 4 0.55% 167 0.49% 
International Public Affairs MS* 1 0.14% - - 
International Studies 1 0.14% 227 0.66% 
Journalism 9 1.23% 513 1.50% 
Kinesiology** 26 3.55% 440 1.28% 
Legal Studies  10 1.37% 231 0.67% 
Life Sciences Communication 39 5.33% 161 0.47% 
Materials Science and Engineering 1 0.14% 172 0.50% 
Mathematics  4 0.55% 649 1.89% 
Mechanical Engineering  9 1.23% 816 2.38% 
Microbiology 6 0.82% 249 0.73% 
Neurobiology 13 1.78% 651 1.90% 
Nuclear Engineering 1 0.14% 77 0.22% 
Nursing** 6 0.82% 793 2.31% 
Nutritional Sciences 4 0.55% 229 0.67% 
Personal Finance 45 6.15% 281 0.82% 
Philosophy 2 0.27% 132 0.38% 
Physical Education** 6 0.82% 32 0.09% 
Physics 1 0.14% 142 0.41% 
Political Science 16 2.19% 928 2.70% 
Psychology 22 3.01% 1,194 3.48% 
Rehabilitation Psychology** 12 1.64% 199 0.58% 
Retailing & Consumer Behavior 26 3.55% 382 1.11% 
Scandinavian Studies 1 0.14% 19 0.06% 
Social Work 1 0.14% 79 0.23% 
Sociology 13 1.78% 197 0.57% 
Soil Science 1 0.14% 10 0.03% 
Spanish 6 0.82% 416 1.21% 
Special Education 1 0.14% 110 0.32% 
Statistics 5 0.68% 390 1.14% 
Textiles and Fashion Design 1 0.14% 86 0.25% 
Wildlife Ecology 1 0.14% 62 0.18% 
Zoology  4 0.55% 156 0.45% 
Total* 705 96.38% 34,308 78.36% 
 
Note: As students with more than one major are counted as one unit in each major, the total number of majors may exceed the 
total number of students. Students who have not declared majors are not included in these calculations. 
* Graduate degrees are not included in the undergraduate student body percentage calculation. 
**Number of majors includes students who are declared in pre-majors. 



35 
 

Appendix  H              
  

 



36 
 

 



37 
 

 
 

 
 



38 
 

Appendix I 

  



39 
 

 



40 
 

 



41 
 

 



42 
 

 



43 
 

 



44 
 

 



45 
 

 



46 
 

 



47 
 

 



48 
 

 



49 
 

 



50 
 

 



51 
 

 



52 
 

 



53 
 

 



54 
 

 



55 
 

 



56 
 

 



57 
 

 
 

 



58 
 

Appendix J 
 

2018-19 Summary of Big Ten & Level III/IV NCAA Violations 
Sport/Department Occurred Bylaw(s) 

Involved Violation 

Women's Rowing 3/31/2018 17.1.7.6.5 The Women’s Rowing team did not take a day off during their declared week that coincided 
with spring break during the Spring 2018 semester 

OUTSIDE 
COMPETITION 

Summer 
2018 Rule 14.6 Outside Competition 

Women's 
Swimming & 
Diving 

7/16/2018 13.1.3.1.1 The Assistant Swimming & Diving Coach initiated a phone call to a sophomore prospect. 

Women's 
Volleyball 8/8/2018 17.02.19 The Assistant Director of Athletic Communications tweeted a video of current Women’s 

Volleyball student-athletes engaging in voluntary athletically-related activities. 

Women's Rowing 9/21/2018 12.5.2.1 A Women's Rowing student-athlete was featured in an apparel company's social media post 
advertising the company's product. 

Women's Rowing 10/8/2018 13.10.2.8 A Women’s Rowing non-coaching staff member quoted and commented on the Instagram post 
of an unsigned prospect. 

Men's Tennis 10/10/2018 13.10.2.8 An Athletic Communications intern quoted and commented on the tweet of an unsigned 
prospect. 

Football 8/9/2018 
11.4.4, 

11.4.4.1, 
13.8.3.5, 
13.8.3.5.1 

UW Football Strength and Conditioning hired an individual associated with a prospective 
student-athlete as a volunteer strength and conditioning intern within a two-year period after the 
prospective student-athlete's enrollment. 

Men's Track & 
Field 10/23/2018 13.4.1 The Director of Cross Country and Track & Field mistakenly sent an email to the entire Men’s 

Track & Field recruit database, which included four sophomore prospects. 

Football 10/6/2018 13.2.1 
During a prospect’s official visit to UW, a current Football student-athlete allowed the prospect 
to take his game-used gloves from the locker room after the completion of the UW football 
game. 

Women's Rowing 11/28/2018 13.1.3.1 The Assistant Women’s Rowing Coach returned a phone call to a sophomore prospect. 

Wrestling 6/25/2018 
17.1.7.2.1; 
17.27.6.2; 
17.27.7; 
17.02.19 

Members of the Wrestling coaching staff were impermissibly present during voluntary strength 
and conditioning workouts 

Women's Hockey 7/1/2018 Rule 15.5.B 

After her medical hardship waiver was approved, a Women’s Ice Hockey student-athlete was 
required to receive a notification of renewal of her athletics aid at the average of the previous 
four years by July 1, 2018.  This required renewal offer resulted in the Women's Hockey team 
being over-offered for the 2018-19 academic year, even though the student-athlete did not plan 
to accept the offer. 

Men's Cross 
Country, Men's 
Tennis, Women's 
Swimming & 
Diving 

9/14/2018 
16.8.1; 

12.1.1.1.3; 
12.1.1.1.3.1; 
12.1.1.1.3.2 

Prior to receiving final amateurism certification, three UW student-athletes were allowed to 
travel, compete, and practice beyond the 45-day temporary certification period. 

Men's Basketball 10/6/2018 13.7.1.2 The Men’s Basketball staff provided an unofficial visit to three 2022 prospects. 

Men's Hockey 12/16/2019 13.1.2.1 
A Men’s Hockey Coach attended a prospect’s contest with a UW Men’s Hockey alum who lived 
in the area of the contest.  The Men’s Hockey Coach was not aware that the alum’s presence at 
the prospect’s contest would constitute an impermissible recruiter. 

Men's Hockey 12/29/2019 12.7.3; 
14.2.1.1 

Prior to his official admittance to UW and his completion of the NCAA Drug Testing Consent 
Form, a transfer student-athlete practiced for two days with the Men’s Hockey team.  The 
violation occurred due to a misunderstanding, as the Admissions Office had communicated that 
the student-athlete would be admitted, but his formal admittance had yet to occur. 

OUTSIDE 
COMPETITION Fall 2018 Rule 14.6 Outside Competition 

Wrestling 7/18/2018 
13.1.1.1.5; 
13.1.1.3; 
13.1.3.1 

A Wrestling Coach engaged in impermissible contact with current student-athletes at another 
institution 

Women's Hockey 6/14/2019 6/14/2019 In the presence of media, a member of the Athletic Board mentioned the name of a PSA prior 
to her official commitment to the institution 

Men's Hockey 9/8/2018 4/10/2019 Two coaches made a total of four phone calls to three PSAs prior to the permissible age for the 
PSAs to receive such calls 

 
 

 



59 
 

Appendix K 

 
 

 



60 
 

Appendix L 
 

 
 



61 
 

 



62 
 

 



63 
 

 



64 
 

 



65 
 

 



66 
 

 



67 
 

 



68 
 

 



69 
 

 



70 
 

 



71 
 

 



72 
 

 



73 
 

 



74 
 

 



75 
 

 



76 
 

 



77 
 

 



78 
 

 



79 
 

 



80 
 

 



81 
 

 



82 
 

 



83 
 

 



84 
 

 



85 
 

 



86 
 

 



87 
 

 



88 
 

 



89 
 

 



90 
 

 



91 
 

 



92 
 

 



93 
 

 



94 
 

 



95 
 

 



96 
 

 



97 
 

 



98 
 

 



99 
 

 



100 
 

 



101 
 

 



102 
 

 



103 
 

 



104 
 

 



105 
 

 



106 
 

 



  

Page 1 of 3 

II. All Regents 
February 7, 2020 

Item 13. 

 
WISCONSIN PUBLIC MEDIA:  

TELLING WISCONSIN STORIES  
 
 

REQUESTED ACTION 
 
For information only. 
 
 
SUMMARY 
 
University of Wisconsin-Madison (UW-Madison) Division of Wisconsin Public Media (WPM) 
operates PBS Wisconsin1 and Wisconsin Public Radio (WPR) in partnership with the 
Wisconsin Educational Communications Board (ECB).2 ECB is an independent state agency 
that distributes public broadcasting and public safety services to the state. ECB and the 
Board of Regents are required by statute to maintain an affiliation agreement for the 
coordinated operation of services.3 PBS Wisconsin programs and distributes four 
broadcast channels (PBS Wisconsin Main Channel, Wisconsin Channel, Create and PBS Kids 
24/7) across the state. WPR programs two statewide broadcast networks (Ideas Network 
and News & Classical Network) distributed statewide.  
 
PBS Wisconsin is a member station of the Public Broadcasting Service (PBS). WPR along 
with its campus affiliates are members of NPR. Both PBS Wisconsin and WPR maintain 
strong broadcast audiences while continuing to expand in the digital and mobile spaces. 
During Fiscal Year 2019, PBS Wisconsin served 1.4 million people each month through its 
programs delivered via broadcast, online, classroom education services and in community 
programs across Wisconsin. During the same period, more than 425,000 listeners tuned in 
each week to WPR and digital consumers accounted for more than 11 million pageviews of 
WPR’s websites throughout the year. 
 

 
1 Wisconsin Public Television changed its name to PBS Wisconsin in November 2019. 
2 PBS Wisconsin is a television network of six stations and six translators. The Board of Regents hold 
the FCC license for WHA-TV (Madison); the remaining television licenses are held by the ECB. 
Wisconsin Public Radio operates two statewide networks with a total of 29 stations and 13 
translators. The Board of Regents hold licenses for 9 stations and 1 translator of the Wisconsin 
Public Radio network; ECB holds licenses for 17 stations and 5 translators; the remaining licensees 
are operated by other non-commercial educational entities through affiliation agreements.  
3 Wis. Stat. §36.25(5). 



  

Page 2 of 3 

The Wisconsin Idea is embedded in the values of WPM and is the guiding principle in its 
second century of distributing and producing significant content for the people of 
Wisconsin. Both WPR and PBS Wisconsin offer a wide variety of news, education and 
cultural content. For example, WPR provides statewide news coverage with regional 
reporters based in Milwaukee, Madison, La Crosse, Green Bay, Eau Claire, Wausau and 
Superior along with two full-time State Capitol reporters. PBS Wisconsin provides weekly in-
depth reporting on Here and Now and released three documentaries in FY2019 covering 
significant statewide issues: Not Enough Apologies: Trauma Stories; Portraits from Rural 
Wisconsin; and Medicine on Main Street.  
 
WPR launched a new weekend series, BETA, featuring “provocative profiles of people 
changing our world through arts, culture and technology” offered in broadcast and podcast 
formats. PBS Wisconsin released the latest in its historical series of Wisconsin Hometown 
Stories: Eau Claire. The Eau Claire also community inspired the latest PBS Wisconsin 
Education project: Joe Bee Xiong: War to Peace which explores the Hmong experience and 
culture in Wisconsin. These examples are a sampling of the significant content produced in 
the past year by PBS Wisconsin and WPR designed to inform, educate, engage and 
enlighten the people of Wisconsin. 
 
Presenter 
 

• Gene Purcell, Director of Wisconsin Public Media, UW-Madison 
 

 
BACKGROUND   
 
The Board of Regents of the University of Wisconsin System is the licensee of 15 FCC non-
commercial broadcasting licenses across the state. The Division of Wisconsin Public Media, 
UW-Madison operates the following stations either wholly or in partnership with campuses; 
including: WHA-AM and WHA-TV, Madison; WUWS-FM, Ashland; WUEC-FM, Eau Claire; 
WHID-FM, Green Bay; WLSU-FM, La Crosse; WVSS-FM, Menomonie; WRST-FM (Oshkosh); 
WRFW-FM, River Falls; and KUWS-FM, Superior. The remaining stations are managed at the 
campus level: WSUM-FM (Madison), WUWM-FM (Milwaukee), WSUP-FM (Platteville), WWSP-
FM (Stevens Point), and WSUW-FM (Whitewater). As the licensee of these stations, the 
Board of Regents is accountable to the FCC for compliance with all statutory and regulatory 
requirements. The purpose of this summary is to provide the Regents with information 
essential to fulfilling their oversight obligations. The President of the UW System delegates 
authority and responsibility for operational administration of these stations to the 
chancellors of the institutions where the stations are located.  
 
 



  

Page 3 of 3 

ATTACHMENTS 
 

A) Coverage Maps 
B) Wisconsin Public Radio Annual Report 
C) PBS Wisconsin Annual Report   

 
 



Adams

Ashland

Barron

Bayfield

Brown

Bu�alo

Burnett

Calumet

Chippewa

Clark

Columbia

Crawford Dane

Dodge

Door

Douglas

Dunn

Eau Claire

Florence

Fond du Lac

Forest

Grant

Green

Iowa

Iron

Jackson

Je�erson

Juneau

Kenosha

Kewaunee

La Crosse

Lafayette

Langlade
Lincoln

Manitowoc

Marathon

Marinette

Marquette

Monroe

Oconto

Oneida

Outagamie

Ozaukee

Pepin
Pierce

Polk

Portage

Price

Racine

Richland

Rock

Rusk

St. Croix

Sauk

Sawyer

Shawano

Menominee

Sheboygan

Taylor

Trempealeau

Vernon

Vilas

Walworth

Washburn

Washington

Waukesha

Waupaca

Waushara Winnebago

Wood

Milwaukee

Green
 Lake

91.9
WHDI

Sister Bay

89.9
WHSF

Rhinelander/
Eagle River

90.3
WRST

Oshkosh

91.3
WHHI

Highland

91.7
WSHS Sheboygan

88.9 WEPS Elgin, IL

90.9
WHA

Madison
107.9

WHA
Madison

88.7
WRFW

River Falls

91.3
KUWS Superior

90.3
WHBM Park Falls

88.3
WHWC

Menomonie/
Eau Claire

90.3
WHLA La Crosse

90.7
WHAD

Delafield/
Milwaukee

89.1
WHAA Adams

AM 970 
WHA Madison

88.1
WHID Green Bay

101.3
WHRM-3

91.9
WLBL-FM

99.1 WLBL 
Stevens Point

100.9 WLBL
Marshfield

90.9
WUWS

Ashland

AM 930 
WLBL Auburndale/

Stevens Point

Wausau

WPR is a service of the Wisconsin 
Educational Communications Board 
and University of Wisconsin-Extension.    

In Central Wisconsin, The 
Ideas Network can also be 
heard on HD Radio 90.9 
WHRM-3, Wausau.

wpr.org

The Ideas Network
Be informed and inspired by conversation and entertainment 
from Wisconsin and the nation.

WPR is a service of the Wisconsin 
Educational Communications Board 
and University of Wisconsin-Extension.    

News & Classical

wpr.org

Adams

Ashland

Barron

Bayfield

Brown

Bu�alo

Burnett

Calumet

Chippewa

Clark

Columbia

Crawford Dane

Dodge

Door

Douglas

Dunn

Eau Claire

Florence

Fond du Lac

Forest

Grant

Green

Iowa

Iron

Jackson

Je�erson

Juneau

Kenosha

Kewaunee

La Crosse

Lafayette

Langlade
Lincoln

Manitowoc

Marathon

Marinette

Marquette

Monroe

Oconto

Oneida

Outagamie

Ozaukee

Pepin
Pierce

Polk

Portage

Price

Racine

Richland

Rock

Rusk

St. Croix

Sauk

Sawyer

Shawano

Menominee

Sheboygan

Taylor

Trempealeau

Vernon

Vilas

Walworth

Washburn

Washington

Waukesha

Waupaca

Waushara Winnebago

Wood

Milwaukee

Green
 Lake

104.7
WHWA

Washburn
88.5

WSSU Superior

89.7
WHND

Sister Bay

91.1
WGTD 

Kenosha

89.1
WSSW

Platteville

101.7
WGTD Elkhorn

103.3
WGTD Lake Geneva

90.7
WVSS

Menomonie
89.7
WUEC

Eau Claire

88.9
WLSU

La Crosse

89.9
WHSA Brule

90.9
WHRM Wausau

88.7
WERN Madison

89.3
WPNE Green Bay

In southwestern Wisconsin, the 
News and Classical Network 
can also be heard on HD Radio 
91.3 WHHI-3, Highland

WPR and NPR journalists offer local, national and global news 
with classical music during the day and overnight.

PBS Wisconsin is a service of the Wisconsin Educational Communications Board and the University of Wisconsin-Madison.

TRANSLATOR 
RIVER FALLS

TRANSLATOR 
WEBSTER

TRANSLATOR 
FLORENCE COUNTY

TRANSLATOR 
ELLISON BAY

TRANSLATOR 
BLOOMINGTON

TRANSLATOR 
COLOMA

Providing the best in local and national 

content for Wisconsin

PBS Wisconsin and WPR are a service of the Educational Communications Board and University of Wisconsin-Madison

91.9
Sister Bay

89.9
Rhinelander

90.3
Oshkosh

91.3
Platteville

91.7
Sheboygan

88.9 Elgin, IL

90.9
Madison 107.9

Madison

88.7
River Falls

91.3
Superior

90.3
Park Falls

88.3
Eau Claire

90.3
La Crosse

90.7
Milwaukee

89.1
Wisconsin 

Rapids

AM 970 
 Madison

88.1
Green Bay

101.3 91.9

99.1
Stevens Point

100.9
Marshfield

90.9
Ashland

AM 930 
Auburndale

Wausau

104.7
Washburn88.5

Superior

89.7
Sister Bay

91.1
Kenosha

89.1
Platteville

101.7
Elkhorn

103.3
Lake Geneva

90.7
Menomonie 89.7

Eau Claire

88.9
La Crosse

89.9
Brule

90.9
Wausau

88.7
Madison

89.3
Green Bay



Annual Report 2019



2019 At A Glance

459K
Listeners a 

Week

11M
Pageviews

52K+
Members

426,000 listeners on air, 33,000 online 
Our two main networks, NPR News & Music 
and The Ideas Network, are available on air 
and online. We also offer an All Classical 
channel online and via HD radio.

We serve the state with local staff and studios 
in Madison, Milwaukee, Green Bay, Wausau, 
Superior, Eau Claire and La Crosse. We also 
maintain a business office in Appleton.

WPR.org served more than 11 million 
pageviews on topics including news, current 
affairs, science, pop culture and much more.

Our single largest source of support is 
from individual listeners like you — 
thank you!

7 News Bureaus
37 Stations 

For more than 100 years, Wisconsin Public Radio has enriched life in 
the state with free and independent content that informs and inspires 
individuals and communities. 



WPR’s news team reports on urgent issues every day, while also taking a 
deeper look at the economic, political and cultural fabric of Wisconsin. In 
2019, WPR explored Wisconsin’s complicated relationship with alcohol in 
the special series “High Tolerance.” In more than 20 stories featured in our 
newscasts, talk shows and on wpr.org, the project examined the many ways 
alcohol impacts our lives. Stories ranged from profiles of women in the 
industry to the challenges of finding alcoholism treatment in rural areas.

Our commitment to outstanding journalism extended to digital-first 
projects as well. Our seven-episode podcast “Derailed” dug into the real 
story of how high-speed rail almost came to Wisconsin. Rigorously reported 
by Capitol Bureau Chief Shawn Johnson and Special Projects Reporter 
Bridgit Bowden, the podcast reexamined a story from the recent past and 
shed light on today’s partisan political landscape. 

We added expertise to our team by hiring a new rural communities 
reporter and a sports reporter in 2019. WPR also continued to train the 
next generation of journalists through our three news fellowships. Fellows 
received hands-on experience in public radio news production and ethics.

Outstanding Journalism

Photos: Lee Ester News Fellow Phoebe Petrovic covering Gov. Evers’ inauguration, WPR’s 
Shawn Johnson and Bridgit Bowden discussing “Derailed” at a live event in Madison.



Our extensive network of studios and reporters is on the ground and 
building connections on air, online, and in communities statewide. Last 
year we invited students at Monona Grove Liberal Arts Charter School to 
create pieces for “Wisconsin Life.” The students told the stories that they 
most wanted to tell — about themselves, their families, music and history. 
Working with producer Maureen McCollum, students learned interviewing 
skills and audio production. The final stories were broadcast statewide in 
“Classroom Frequency: Student Voices From Wisconsin.” 

This year our WHYsconsin series took off, producing more than 20 stories 
based on listener-submitted questions about Wisconsin, its people and 
its culture. From the state’s complicated county road naming scheme to 
Hodags to ways to safely traverse frozen lakes and rivers, all questions were 
welcome.

Every day, The Ideas Network invites Wisconsinites to share their 
perspectives on the issues that matter to them. This year we broadcast from 
Superior on the one-year anniversary of the Husky Energy refinery fire, as 
well as from Mineral Point Elementary School to explore Wisconsin history. 

Community Connections

Photos: “Classroom Frequency” contributor and student Jasnen Valencia in WPR’s music 
library, “The Morning Show” Host Kate Archer Kent on the air.



Classical music forms the core of WPR’s music offerings, with more 
than 100 hours broadcast each week. Throughout 2019, we aired world-
renowned artists side by side with some of Wisconsin’s best musicians. Our 
commitment to celebrating young talent included the statewide broadcast 
of selections from the annual Wisconsin School Music Association Honors 
Concerts and the Madison Symphony Orchestra’s “Final Forte” Bolz Young 
Artist Competition. WPR also offered a mix of Wisconsin-hosted jazz, world, 
folk, blues and Native American music each week on statewide and regional 
networks.

WPR listeners are engaged and curious. In 2019, we invited thousands to 
try something new with live events in communities across the state. We 
celebrated 40 years of “Simply Folk” with Grammy Award nominees Dom 
Flemons and Mary Gauthier, and Madison favorite Cris Plata. Milwaukee 
listeners signed up for The Explorers Club to learn pickling and food 
preservation skills. The “WPR Politics Podcast” team recorded live episodes 
in Washburn, Waukesha and Chippewa Falls. And we invited listeners out to 
parks, breweries, and concert venues for listener appreciation events across 
the state.

Inspiration and Engagement

Photos: Members of the Wisconsin Youth Symphony Orchestra performing on “The Midday,” 
Grammy Award winner Dom Flemons at the “Simply Folk” 40th Anniversary Shindig.



Questions? Contact Audience Services at 800-747-7444 or listener@wpr.org

Front Cover Photos: (Clockwise from top left) “The Morning Show” on a reporting trip near Superior, “Old 
Time Radio Drama” live on stage at a sold-out show in Oshkosh, Grammy Award nominee Mary Gautier at 
our “Simply Folk” 40th Anniversary Shindig, WPR fans pose for a photo with “The Road to Higher Ground” 
Host Dr. Jonathan Øverby.

Back Cover Photos: (Clockwise from top left) Members of the Wisconsin Youth Symphony Orchestra 
performing on “The Midday,” WPR fans at our 2019 Milwaukee Listener Appreciation Event, audience 
members at our sold-out “Derailed” launch in Madison, 2019 Second Century News Fellow Alana Watson.



2019 Local Content Report

1

2019 Local Content Report

heather.reese
Cross-Out



2 

Angela Fitzgerald is host of Wisconsin Life. 

PBS Wisconsin 
PBS Wisconsin was founded to connect the people of 
Wisconsin through the public service mission known 
as The Wisconsin Idea. That philosophy states that 
knowledge and education should be freely shared among 
all citizens, specifically by extending the learning, 
resources and expertise of the University of Wisconsin 
to the borders of the state (and beyond), so that everyone 
may take full and equal advantage of civic and economic 
opportunity, make broad and deep social connections 
and strengthen our democracy. PBS Wisconsin is 
proud to have been a rich part of this tradition since 
its inception. Now, as then, we continue to pursue 
our mission of community service: on the air, in our 
communities and online. 

Local Impact 
PBS Wisconsin tells the story of our state through the 
many voices of its residents. Through our programs and 
educational and community initiatives, we share the 
history, culture, news and educational resources that 
make Wisconsin unique. 

As service providers, we use all available platforms 
to reach all of our communities, uniting Wisconsin’s 
diverse residents, including Wisconsin’s 60,000 K-12 
teachers. PBS Wisconsin’s four broadcast channels, plus 
our digital, classroom education services and community 
engagement programs serve more than 1.4 million people 
across Wisconsin each month. 

PBS Wisconsin Shares, Serves, Informs, 
Educates, Entertains, Connects 
2019 stories of impact focus on: 

• Serving Youth: Youth services through high- 
quality early learning programming, spotlighting
young performers, educator resources, school
readiness, early literacy opportunities, and a
comprehensive K-12 education unit.

• Building Community: Online and in-person
engagement that explores new ways to reach new
audiences and brings people together to share
stories, learning, and fun!

• Sparking Conversation: Unbiased news and
public affairs programming that delves into the
issues and topics affecting local communities most
and giving Wisconsin residents fact-based starting
points for conversation.

• Bridging Wisconsin’s Past and   Present: Spotlight
on Wisconsin, sharing and preserving our rich
history, and building bridges of understanding and
compassion across the state’s diverse
communities.

AN ESSENTIAL RESOURCE FOR WISCONSIN 



3  

Future Self 
interview 

 
 
 
 

2019 Local Content Report SERVING YOUTH 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tim’s Lab: A Visionary Investment in 
science, technology, engineering, arts, 
and mathematics (STEAM) Education 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PBS Wisconsin launched the Timothy William Trout 
Education Innovation Lab (Tim’s Lab) in 2019 in 
partnership with University of Wisconsin-Madison. 
Working with the University’s prestigious Wisconsin 
Institutes for Discovery, PBS Wisconsin employs 
the resources of public media to connect world-class 
research to teachers and students. We are creating 
experiences and content to build science, technology, 
engineering, arts and mathematics (STEAM) identity, 
illuminate STEAM career pathways; and support the 
teaching of STEAM concepts, practices, and ways of 
thinking. 
• Tiny Earth is a global network of students and 
instructors dedicated to discovering new antibiotics 
through student-sourced field research. The Tiny Earth 
Lab, housed at the Wisconsin Institute for Discovery, 

seeks to inspire students to pursue careers in science 
through original laboratory and field research, while 
also aiming to address a worldwide health threat: the 
diminishing supply of effective antibiotics. 

• Meet the Labs is a series of mini-documentaries 
and supplemental classroom materials developed to 
activate student discovery by engaging with the research 
conducted by labs housed at the Wisconsin Institute for 
Discovery, Wisconsin Alumni Research Foundation, the 
Morgridge Institute for Research and beyond. 

• Future Self will be designed to support career- 
choice initiatives in classrooms across Wisconsin. The 
interactive project features short videos of Wisconsin 
professionals working in or pursuing careers in STEAM 
fields. Middle school students, using their own interests 
as a foundation, will explore videos and profiles of 
the featured individuals’ personal journeys, and make 
connections based on shared interests, beliefs and 
experiences. Future Self seeks to help students answer 
the question: “How am I like a scientist?” 

 

STORIES OF 
IMPACT 



4  

 
 
 
 
 

SERVING YOUTH 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Family fun time at Family 
and Community Learning 

workshops in Cashton 
and Westby. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Lasting Impact for Early Learners 
in Cashton and Westby 
Through a federal Ready to Learn grant, PBS 
Wisconsin is working in two rural communities 
northwest of Madison to support early learning through 
development of a Community Collaborative for Early 
Learning and Media. PBS Wisconsin partnered with 
educational and community leaders in the village of 
Cashton in Monroe County and the neighboring city 
of Westby in Vernon County. These communities have 
little access to regulated childcare centers, private pre- 
schools or collaborative partners such as a YMCA or 
a Boys and Girls Club. The majority of early childcare 
providers are unregulated and may not be equipped to 
build school readiness. 
Members of the PBS Wisconsin Education team have 
been working closely with the Westby Area School 

District, Westby Bekkum Library, Westby Lutheran 
Church, Cashton Area School District and the Cashton 
Public Library to facilitate enriching family engagement 
events. In 2019, partners hosted 28 events, with an 
emphasis on STEAM, literacy and play-based learning. 

Westby Elementary principal Bruce Peterson said 
that the successful implementation of Ready to 
Learn programming at his school helped “light the 
schoolhouse,” keeping the school open beyond school 
hours. This partnership allowed the school to introduce 
more afterschool family engagement opportunities 
that have had great success. For example, they recently 
hosted a Math Night and had more than 70 attendees. 
Additionally, the school is building a “STEAM Closet” 
that has Ready to Learn activity-specific supplies in it for 
teachers to activate this learning in their own classrooms. 

In an effort to promote STEAM play and learning, 
PBS Wisconsin Education set up mini makerspaces for 
community use at both libraries and the Westby Lutheran 
Church. Librarians have used these makerspaces for 
hands-on, engaging tools during storytime. They are also 
utilized during their after-school programs. 

 



5  

 
 
 
 
 

SERVING YOUTH 
 

 
“I cannot wait to share this with my 
students. This is another resource 
that we can use in our Hmong culture 
class! Truly, this is a great project, 
and I especially love how the animation 
turned out. I felt like cheering at the end!” 

—Pua Song, Hmong Culture Specialist at 
the American Hmong Peace Academy 

Partnering with Eau Claire Educators 
to Create Needed Hmong 
Cultural Resources 

The Wisconsin Hometown Stories 
series is a multimedia project 
profiling key regions in Wisconsin 
through television documentaries 
and local history resources tailored 
to meet community educational 
needs. In the development of the 

 

 
PBS Wisconsin’s Kindness in the Classroom video series is 

Joe Bee Xiong project in Eau Claire, educators 
emphasized a need for more 

designed to help pre-k and kindergarten students. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The design of Joe Bee Xiong: War to Peace was inspired by 
story cloths, a distinctive textile used in Hmong storytelling. 

 
“Your team has done an amazing job 
with the Joe Bee Xiong project. The 
website has a perfect combination 
of text, images and video so students 
have many ways to access the story 
(and at many levels).” 

—Joel Raney, Former Eau Claire Area 
Hmong Mutual Assistance Association 
Culturally Responsive Coach 

digital learning resources – especially biographies 
and curriculum materials about the area’s Hmong 
community. 
Together with these educators, PBS Wisconsin 
Education created Joe Bee Xiong: War to Peace as a 
suite of culturally responsive digital resources available 
on pbswisconsineducation.org and pbslearningmedia. 
org for all students to use in their classrooms or other 
learning environments. 

 
 

 

Planting the Seeds of Kindness 
PBS Wisconsin teamed up with the Center for Healthy 
Minds at UW-Madison to activate the research backed 
Kindness Curriculum in the video series Kindness in 
the Classroom. 

Kindness in the Classroom is a multi-part video 
series designed to empower educators who want to 
bring mindfulness into their classrooms. The series 
starts with insight into the positive impacts of teaching 
mindfulness, and then demonstrates implementation 
the Kindness Curriculum: a free 24-lesson mindfulness 
guide designed for early learning classrooms. 

 
“This curriculum teaches the most important skills 
children need to do well in school and in the world.” 

—Renae Henning, Community Care and Preschool 
in Beaver Dam 



6  

 
 
 
 
 

2019 Local Content Report SERVING YOUTH 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

“I appreciated all of the workshops and 
seminars around the video production 
process. The team-building activities 
in the beginning of the workshop 
were KEY to the success and the 
camaraderie that was created. I have 
never attended a PD [professional 
development] session that was so built 
around relationships as this one was! 

You did a phenomenal job modeling 
the strategies that you presented to 
us and I plan on taking those with 
me back to my school. The mentoring 
by PBS Wisconsin and PBS SRL staff 
was key in the success of this! It was 
incredibly hands on and engaging. I 
LOVED that we created a piece about 
one another. It was a lot safer than 
having to go out and find a story on 
the streets and we got a great piece 
to treasure. THANK YOU!” 

–Andi Kornowski, Click Teacher 
Summer Camp Attendee 

 
 
 
 

 
Video Production Immersion 
Summer Camp for Educators 
The Click Youth Media program supports educators 
in teaching digital literacy and media production. 
The program also develops the ability of students to 
understand and interpret media, engage with it through 
critical dialogue and produce their own media, building 
a critical 21st Century skill set. 

In August 2019, PBS Wisconsin Education hosted the first 
Click Teacher Summer Camp: A Video Production 
Immersion, a three-day professional development 
conference for educators looking to implement digital 
programming, including video production, podcasting 
and digital storytelling skills in their classrooms. 

PBS Wisconsin Education 
Introduces Bright by Text 
Bright by Text is a free educational text-based 
subscription service that provides parents and 
caregivers with quality information and trusted 
links to resources for child learning. The messages 
are comprised of age-specific, locally and nationally 
curated, research-based content from Bright by Three 
and other trusted providers, including PBS Kids, 
PBS Parents, Vroom, and Sesame Workshop. 
Available in English and Spanish, these tips and 
games are for children ages 0-8. 

Parents can subscribe 
with their child’s age 
and zip code to receive 
relevant messages 
delivered directly 
to their phone. 

https://wpt.us15.list-manage.com/track/click?u=301f77f1b7106e40d5da1448a&id=2a03a25c68&e=a6434c56d4
https://wpt.us15.list-manage.com/track/click?u=301f77f1b7106e40d5da1448a&id=0d1cd1decd&e=a6434c56d4


7  

 
 
 
 
 

SERVING YOUTH 
 

 
 
 

“My daughter said more to Daniel 
Tiger in the last ten minutes than 
she’s said to me in the last ten years.” 

—a mother who participated in PBS 
Wisconsin’s Sensory Friendly Time at 
Get Up and Go! 

 

 
 

Twenty-one Years of Get Up and Go! 
Two Years of Sensory-Friendly Time 
PBS Wisconsin’s longstanding Get Up and Go! Day 
active-lifestyle event and live broadcast turned 21 
this year. The event teaches pre-school kids and their 
families about healthy choices and active lifestyles. 

Bringing families together with PBS KIDS characters 
Daniel Tiger and Katerina Kittycat, music from 
SteveSongs, as well as local health partners and 
nutritionists, musicians and artists, fitness enthusiasts 
and local activity-focused youth non-profits, the popular 
event was held in Madison, Appleton and La Crosse with 
total in-person attendance of more than 3,000 people. 

PBS Wisconsin proudly expanded Get Up and Go! Day 
Sensory-Friendly Time in Madison in 2019 from 
one hour to two, bringing the event to 30 families with 
children who need social and sensory accommodations. 
Collaborating with the Autism Society of Southcentral 
Wisconsin, PBS Wisconsin strives to make all 
Wisconsin early learners feel seen and included in PBS 
Wisconsin’s Get Up and Go! Day. 

Spotlighting Wisconsin’s Talented 
Young Performers 
PBS Wisconsin has a long tradition of showcasing the 
creative achievements of Wisconsin’s young performers 
and the hard work that goes on behind the scenes. 
The annual broadcast and popular live stream of the 
Jerry Awards celebrates Wisconsin high school musical 
theater and serves to encourage, recognize, and honor 
excellence in our young performers in the state. The 
2019 Jerry Awards was streamed by nearly 7,000 viewers 
from across Wisconsin and around the world, including 
the UK, Canada, Brazil, Poland, France, Norway, and 
Germany. The Jerry Awards will be celebrating its 10th 

year of exhibiting student’s talent in its upcoming 
2019/2020 season. 

“Programs such as these bring the opportunity to 
enjoy the talents of young people and listen to music 
viewers may not have had a chance to hear, hopefully 
fostering a desire to seek out live performances. 
Awesome as always!” 

—Cynthia from Shawano 
 



8  

 
 
 
 
 

SERVING YOUTH 
 

 
 
 

Below: The 2019 finalists 
in the Bolz Young Artist 
Competition (featured left 
to right): violinist Monona 
Suzuki, cellist Grace Kim, 
flutist Holly Venkitaswaran 
and pianist Antonio Wu. 

 

 
 

The 2019 Bolz Young Artist Competition 
The 2019 Bolz Young Artist Competition was 
broadcast from the Overture Center for the Arts in 
March 2019. The four featured musicians included 
Monona Suzuki, a sophomore from Madison West 
High School; Grace Kim, a junior from Waunakee 
Community High School; Holly Venkitaswaren, an 

e-Achieve Academy senior from Lisbon; and 
Antonio Wu, a sophomore from James Madison 
Memorial High School. 

This now-annual broadcast aims to inspire artists, 
young and old, to explore and share their passions, 
bringing to life new talent and a refreshing perspective 
on the love of classical music. 

 
Music from Madeline Island 
Music From Madeline Island captured talented 
young artists and world-renowned musicians 
performing at Madeline Island Chamber Music, a 
summer music festival located near the shores of 
Lake Superior. The program shared the daily life of the 
festival’s young musicians, ages 14-25, as they honed 
their craft, received intensive training, performed in 
public concerts, and explored the beauty of the island. 

 

 



9  

 
 
 
 

2019 Local Content Report BUILDING COMMUNITY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

“Very well run with a great 
assortment of vendors, classes, 
lectures and quilts on display. The 
quilts on display were inspiring and 
breathtaking in some instances. This 
was my first time attending and I plan 
to return in future years, even though 
it was a six-hour drive for me.” 

—Feedback from The Great Wisconsin Quilt 
Show attendee 

New Name, Same Quilting Extravaganza 
PBS Wisconsin’s Quilt Expo changed its name to The 
Great Wisconsin Quilt Show in 2019. Although 
the name of the popular quilting event evolved, its 
commitment to serving quilt communities across 
Wisconsin, the Midwest and across the nation remains 
unchanged. More than 20,000 quilting enthusiasts 
joined us this year to enjoy 286 quilts on display in 
the Quilt Contest exhibit, 239 quilts in 11 special quilt 
exhibit areas, 41 quilts in the new Log Cabin Quilt 
Challenge exhibit and 16 quilts in the Modern Mini 
Quilt Challenge exhibit. The show also included 126 
informational lectures, 26 stage presentations and 31 
interactive Sit & Sew workshops. More than 30 bed-size 
quilts and tops were collected and completed for the 
“Quilt to Give” community service project to benefit 
Enchanted Makeovers and Domestic Abuse Intervention 
Services (DAIS). And, more than 500 community 
volunteers contributed over 3,400 hours in support of 
the show. 

 

 
The Great Wisconsin Quilt Show entertains and educates a 
group of attendees. 

 
Bill C. Malone, 
a featured 
historian in one 
of the Wisconsin 
Country Music 
Minutes. 

 
 

Wisconsin Country Music Minutes 
Gather a Crowd Online 
PBS Wisconsin brought the panoramic view of Country 
Music: A Film From Ken Burns closer to home, 
offering up opportunities for viewers to connect with the 
music’s local roots. This work included nine Wisconsin 
Country Music Minutes, featuring historian Bill C. 
Malone, who introduced viewers to Wisconsin artists 
who made and continue to make an indelible imprint 
on this shared songbook. Shared online and on air in 
conjunction with the documentary’s primetime broadcast, 
PBS Wisconsin’s Wisconsin Country Music Minutes 
were viewed 27,786 times on Facebook and 1,453 times 
on pbswisconsin.org. 
Leading up to the documentary in May, PBS Wisconsin 
also hosted the The Story of Country Music, a book talk 
and lecture by Malone. Held as a public event in Madison 
and a University Place recording for broadcast on PBS 
Wisconsin, the talk was also live streamed to 4,000 viewers. 

In November, Malone was onsite to talk about his 
participation in the film and experiences working with 
Burns at the preview screening of Country Music at 
Madison’s Monona Terrace. This event was also live 
streamed to 1,600 viewers, with additional viewership 
coming from pbswisconsin.org. 

SH W 

http://pbswisconsin.org/
http://pbswisconsin.org/


10  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Keire Johnson (right), featured in Minding the Gap, talks with 
youth participants of Community Action Inc.’s Fresh Start 
program in Beloit. 

 
 
 
 

 
“We need so much help in this area to 
understand the direction our country 
is going. The numbers are staggering 
- incarceration, suicide, bullying, gun 
violence, mental health issues. We 
need help. We need resources and 
programs like this bring us together 
with shared experiences.” 

—Mary from Madison 

 

 
Beloit Youth Discuss Trauma, Recovery 
and Redemption 
Students from the Beloit Fresh Start Youth Build GED 
and job-training program led a frank and vulnerable 
conversation with Minding the Gap filmmaker Bing 
Liu and film subject Keire Johnson at a public screening 
of the Academy Award- and Emmy-nominated 
documentary that aired statewide on PBS Wisconsin. 

Minding the Gap is the directorial debut of Rockford- 
raised filmmaker Bing Liu. Filmed over a span of 12 
years in Rockford, it begins as a skateboarding film and 
evolves into an exploration of the long-term effects 
of domestic violence, race, class and education in the 
Illinois-Wisconsin state line region. 

With funding from POV-American Documentary, and in 
cooperation with enthusiastic local partners that included 
Community Action, Inc. of Rock County and the Beloit 
International Film Festival, PBS Wisconsin brought 
together a broad cross-section of about 130 Beloit-area 
residents for an evening of food, film and critical dialogue. 

 
Not Enough Apologies: Trauma Stories 
Explores New Approaches to Trauma 
PBS Wisconsin selected May, Trauma-Informed Care 
Awareness Month, to share the new documentary, 
Not Enough Apologies: Trauma Stories. The 
program explores the effects of traumatic experiences 
on children and adults and new responses to it. It 
tracks survivors of trauma and their lived experiences, 
including repeated foster care, treatment center and 
juvenile prison placements. 

 
BUILDING COMMUNITY 

 
Not Enough Apologies: Trauma Stories shows 
how adverse childhood experiences can cause changes 
in the brain and result in cascading behavioral and 
mental health problems. It takes viewers inside juvenile 
courtrooms to understand the world of children in need 
of protection and services. 

Wisconsin is regarded as a model for its response to 
trauma. The documentary explores novel approaches 
across the state where service providers are working 
to be responsive to trauma in efforts to change the 
trajectory for affected children. PBS Wisconsin 
additionally launched an online resource page 
with statewide clinical partners to share additional 
information and provide comprehensive information 
about available community services. 
PBS Wisconsin is working with several partners 
and communities on an ongoing engagement campaign. 
The goal is to connect community stakeholders to 
proactively raise awareness about the impact of trauma, 
to share best practices for trauma remediation and to 
provide information about accessing community support. 

 

https://wpt4.org/trauma/
https://wpt4.org/trauma/


11  

 
 
 
 

2019 Local Content Report SPARKING CONVERSATION 
 

News, Politics and Public Affairs 
PBS Wisconsin is deeply committed to 
providing trustworthy, unbiased and well- 
reported news and public affairs programs for 
Wisconsin residents, along with thoughtful 
analysis by local and national experts. 

Here & Now, our Regional Emmy Award- 
winning weekly series, provides in-depth 
coverage of politics, current events, 
newsmakers and diverse issues from across 
the state. Viewers can also hear directly from 
public servants with PBS Wisconsin’s live 
coverage of the State of the State and biennial 
state budget addresses, as well as the annual 
State of the Tribes Address and many other 
civic events. 
Beyond television, PBS Wisconsin also 
provides a number of online news and 
information services and resources, including 
WisContext and Noon Wednesday, as well 
as a comprehensive voter resource site, 
WisconsinVote.org. 

 

 
Here & Now anchor Frederica Freyberg 

 
Here & Now 
Here & Now is PBS Wisconsin’s weekly news and 
public affairs series, airing each Friday evening 
statewide on PBS Wisconsin. Below are a few 
highlights from 2019. 

On Nov. 22, Here & Now anchor Frederica Freyberg 
interviewed Sen. Ron Johnson, R-Oshkosh, in the heat 
of the impeachment hearings in Washington, where he 
was frequently mentioned by witnesses because of his 
role on the Senate Foreign Relations Committee and 
his work on Ukraine issues. https://pbswisconsin.org/ 
wpt-video/here-and-now/us-senator-ron-johnsons- 
full-interview-dlwtzp/ 
This year, PBS Wisconsin invested in new LiveU 
technology to facilitate live, on-location broadcast and 
web streaming features. PBS Wisconsin journalists 
plan to make robust use of this technology to interview 
people throughout the state, as well as for live nightly 

reporting from the Democratic National Convention in 
Milwaukee and the Republican National Convention in 
Charlotte in 2020. 

This two-part report on Chronic Wasting Disease 
by Zac Schultz includes a real-time LiveU interview 
with the Here & Now anchor and reporter. https:// 
pbswisconsin.org/wpt-video/here-and-now/wisconsin- 
hunters-chronic-wasting-disease/ 

 
 

Noon Wednesday 
Noon Wednesday, one of PBS Wisconsin’s newest 
News & Public Affairs series, is a weekly digital news 
interview program livestreamed on Facebook every 
Wednesday at noon. PBS Wisconsin digital news 
producer Marisa Wojcik hosts the show and invites 
guests who speak on diverse issues and topics relevant 
to Wisconsin. In 2019, Noon Wednesday has covered 
issues of domestic violence, Wisconsin’s right-to- 
farm law, climate change, access to the internet, flood 
damage, vaccination, and much more. 

https://pbswisconsin.org/wpt-video/here-and-now/us-senator-ron-johnsons-full-interview-dlwtzp/
https://pbswisconsin.org/wpt-video/here-and-now/us-senator-ron-johnsons-full-interview-dlwtzp/
https://pbswisconsin.org/wpt-video/here-and-now/us-senator-ron-johnsons-full-interview-dlwtzp/
https://pbswisconsin.org/wpt-video/here-and-now/wisconsin-hunters-chronic-wasting-disease/
https://pbswisconsin.org/wpt-video/here-and-now/wisconsin-hunters-chronic-wasting-disease/
https://pbswisconsin.org/wpt-video/here-and-now/wisconsin-hunters-chronic-wasting-disease/


12  

 
 
 
 
 

SPARKING CONVERSATION 
 

WisContext: A Multimedia News and 
Information Service 
WisContext is a digital news and information 
publication, a broadcast partnership and syndication 
service developed in collaboration between PBS 
Wisconsin and Wisconsin Public Radio. 

WisContext.org explores long-term issues and 
emerging trends affecting life in Wisconsin, with 
focuses in 2019 on trauma-informed care, the dairy- 
state economy, demographic change and climate 
science. This content is curated into multi-story series 
that offer an in-depth and extended look at how 

 
 

 
A WisContext report on climate change featured this bridge in Bayfield County overcome by 
flooding at the end of summer. (CREDIT: Wisconsin Emergency Management) 

 

 
(CREDIT: Sharon Mollerus/CC BY 2.0) 

 
themes developed in Wisconsin’s history, and the ways 
they are shaping Wisconsin’s future. WisContext also 
presents original content and important studies and 
data from academic experts such as the University of 
Wisconsin’s Applied Population Lab, drawing on their 
specialized expertise and research. 

In 2019, the WisContext team worked on two 
particularly compelling series aimed at informing the 
conversation about climate change in the Midwest, 
“Climate Science and Wisconsin” and “Extreme 
Participation and Wisconsin’s Climate. “From the 
environment to human health to the economy, gauging 
the impacts of a changing climate is an urgent scientific 
endeavor with implications for every Wisconsinite and 
WisContext provides deep exploration of these critical 
issues and complex systems. 

New “News” Web Page 
This year, the PBS Wisconsin News Unit 
launched a new web page to provide audiences 
a more integrated and accessible means of 
interacting with our journalism resources. 
Found by visiting pbswisconsin.org and 
clicking on the News tab, the page will 
continue to be populated with additional assets, 
including original web articles, long-form 
original content, partner resources and more. 



13  

 
 
 
 

BRIDGING WISCONSIN’S PAST AND PRESENT 
 
 

 
 

“No one else would or could do it. 
This program added a whole layer of 
complexity to the controversy over 
wolves. The Ojibwe have a stake in the 
debate that very few are aware of.” 

—David from Marshfield 

 
“There is no other source of 
programming of this quality. The 
assistance of the elders to tell the 
story, the art, and the use of the 
indigenous language was well used to 
create a thoughtful and educational 
program that was beautiful to look 
at as well.” 

—Nancy from Wautoma 

Ma’iingan: Brother Wolf 
The Ojibwe share a deep connection with Ma’iingan, 
their name for wolf. Their creation story explains 
that Ma’iingan was created to be a brother to Original 
Man. Because their fates are entwined, what happens 
to one will also happen to the other. Produced with 
support from elders in several Ojibwe communities, 
PBS Wisconsin shared the documentary Ma’iingan: 
Brother Wolf in 2019. 

With insight from Ojibwe elders, biologists and 
visionary artist Rabbett Before Horses Strickland, this 
film captured enduring spiritual connections with 
Brother Wolf, the lasting bonds and responsibilities 
shared between native people and the wolf species 
and the opportunities and challenges presented by 

the reintroduction and protection of the animals across 
reservation lands. 

Friends of PBS Wisconsin also commissioned an oil 
painting titled “Iskwaaj Nibi [The Last Waterhole: 
Creating a New World]” by Strickland, an Ojibwe artist. 
The creation of Strickland’s painting not only serves 
as a major plot point of the documentary but also as 
an artifact for educational outreach. In collaboration 
with the Chazen Museum of Art at UW-Madison, PBS 
Wisconsin hosted an educational outreach event centered 
on Ma’iingan: Brother Wolf and Strickland’s painting. 

This project builds on PBS Wisconsin’s extensive 
prior work collaborating with native communities 
in Wisconsin to provide authentic and accurate 
information about Wisconsin’s First Nations. 

 
Jon Miskowski, PBS Wisconsin 
Director of Television, 
unveiling Rabbett Before 
Horses Strickland’s painting, 
which was featured in the 
documentary, at the premiere 
screening held at the Chazen 
Museum of Art in Madison. 



14  

 
 
 
 
 

BRIDGING WISCONSIN’S PAST AND PRESENT 
 
 

 
 

“We are more and more isolated 
these days, living in our own worlds. 
Programming like Portraits from 
Rural Wisconsin offers an opportunity 
to remember we are all one, and the 
burden of one is mine, too.” 

—Pam from Portage 

Sharing Wisconsin’s Rural Perspectives 
In 2019, PBS Wisconsin built on its long history of 
providing interesting, innovative and entertaining 
programs spotlighting rural perspectives. 

Portraits from Rural Wisconsin premiered in April, 
comprised of a series of interwoven personal stories that 
show why some western Wisconsin residents still say that 
“rural life is the best life”—even in the face of hardship 
and change. PBS Wisconsin producer and reporter 
Andy Soth visited rural America to connect knowledge 
and understanding between Wisconsin residents. 

 
Michael Perry Documentaries 
Michael Perry: How Ya Doin’? and Michael Perry: 
Where I Come From are two new PBS Wisconsin 
documentaries from 2019 featuring Michael Perry, 
both a rural Wisconsin pig farmer and New York Times 
bestselling author. In much of Perry’s work, you’ll often 
find the phrase, “Where I come from.” PBS Wisconsin 
discovered that’s a place of values and hard work and 
simple joys. 

 

 

In both of the 2019 films, Perry shared heartwarming, 
poignant yet humorous stories about his childhood 
home, his family, grade school, high school, farm work, 
sports and becoming a writer. These were all woven 
together by the life lessons that teach us who we are. 
Four free screenings, including an audience question 
and answer session with Perry, were held in Wausau, 
Madison, Green Bay and Eau Claire. 

 
 

Medicine on Main Street 
Medicine on Main Street explored the challenges of 
living in a rural community. Access to quality health 
care can be one of these challenges depending on where 
you live. In rural communities, it is becoming harder 
to recruit and retain talented health care professionals, 
specialists and mental health experts. 

This documentary shows how pharmacists are working 
together to provide local residents with high-quality 
health care. 



15  

 
 
 
 
 

BRIDGING WISCONSIN’S PAST AND PRESENT 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

“The life lessons and Badger spirit 
that Mike Leckrone has imparted 
on me and countless others is 
immeasurable, but this tribute to 
him, his life, his family and his legacy 
truly does justice to it all. Thank you 
so much for producing this incredible 
program! I loved it! I will be watching 
it many times!” 

—Bridgett from Middleton 

Mike Leckrone: Wisconsin’s Showman 
Premiering in November as a pledge special, Mike 
Leckrone: Wisconsin’s Showman reflected on the 
life and work of this legendary and talented composer, 
educator, mentor and entertainer. For 50 years, Professor 
Michael Leckrone led the University of Wisconsin- 
Madison bands and became the face of Badger school 
spirit, energy, and pride for fans across the state and 
country. He cultivated lasting traditions of the annual 
Varsity Band Concerts and Fifth Quarter after home 
Badger football games. Both reflective and celebratory, 
the documentary revealed aspects of Leckrone’s life and 
career that remained surprisingly unknown for someone 
in the spotlight for so long. Two free screenings were 
held in Madison, one for the general public and one at a 
senior residential living community. 

 

 
 

Wisconsin Hometown Stories: 
Sauk Prairie 
The Wisconsin Hometown Stories series has been 
a PBS Wisconsin tradition for more than a decade, 
telling the history of the state one community at a time. 
PBS Wisconsin was excited to share Sauk Prairie’s rich 
history in 2019. 

 

 
 

PBS Wisconsin producers met with many local residents, 
in community centers, libraries and homes, to recall 
and recapture Sauk City and Prairie du Sac’s past. PBS 
Wisconsin also worked with local historical societies, the 
school district and community leaders to identify stories, 
people to interview, and to secure the visual material 
necessary to produce the program, revealing a rich and 
compelling history that informs the present. 

“I could not wait to arrive to my desk to send the 
staff a HUGE thank you for an incredible job done 
on Wisconsin Hometown Stories. I was amazed for 
the entire 60 minutes and learned so much. Because 
of this show, I will never look at places, people or the 
impact of history the same way. Truly, it changed 
me for the better last night as the chamber director 
here. Thank you so much for seeing the potential 
in Sauk Prairie, and sharing its history.” 

—Tywana German from the Sauk Prairie Chamber 
of Commerce 



16  

 
 
 
 
 

BRIDGING WISCONSIN’S PAST AND PRESENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

“I would just like to say thank you so much for 
Wisconsin Life! Angela Fitzgerald is SO good at her 
job. I just love her! She has so much enthusiasm 
when she goes around talks about all the 
interesting subjects of different people. 
I cannot tell you how much I enjoy this program. 
Please keep it on. I love Angela, she’s does such 
a great job. Thank you so much!” 

—Caller to WPT Audience Services Department 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Wisconsin Life 
Angela Fitzgerald explored Wisconsin yet again in 
the seventh season of Wisconsin Life that premiered 
this fall. Fitzgerald took viewers along with her as 
she visited Fincantieri Bay Shipbuilding in Sturgeon 
Bay, tried water skiing with the Plum Ski-ters Water 
Ski Show, met the Black Arts MKE Performing Arts 
summer campers as they created a show and journeyed 
to Wyalusing State Park to explore hiking trails and 
appreciate the view. Wisconsin Life is one of PBS 
Wisconsin’s most inclusive and collaborative projects. 
The series celebrates what makes Wisconsin unique 
through diverse stories of its people and history. 
Wisconsin Life’s Go With the Flow episode from 
season six received a Chicago/Midwest Emmy Award 
this fall for the program’s Outstanding Achievement 
for Magazine Programming. The series’ Coffin Artist 
story, which showcased a Ghanaian carpenter living in 
Madison and crafting a rich African art tradition, also 
received an Emmy Award. 

Around the Farm Table 
Inga Witscher hosted the seventh season of Around 
the Farm Table, which premiered this fall. In the 
show, Witscher’s story becomes the vehicle for telling 
the stories of other interesting small-scale farmers the 
crew encounters along the way. PBS Wisconsin crews 
visited a beekeeper in Eau Claire, a dairy goat farm in 
Cross Plains, a beef cattle farm and rodeo in Hillsboro, 
a native onion forager in a maple forest outside of 
Viroqua, and many more. 

Produced by PBS Wisconsin, Around the Farm Table 
is available for nationwide distribution on other public 
television stations through the National Educational 
Telecommunications Association. It currently airs on 39 
channels throughout the system. The show’s Facebook 
page has received viewer messages from all over the 
country, from Alaska to Puerto Rico. 

 

 
“Inga does a lot to support and showcase small, 
sustainable farming in Wisconsin, and as far as this 
family is concerned, Around the Farm Table is the 
most important show you have.” 

—Family farmer 



17  

 
 
 
 

2019 AWARDS AND RECOGNITION 
 

Emmy Awards 
Programming—Documentary—Cultural 
Hip-Hop U: The First Wave Scholars 

Programming—Human Interest 
Program/Special/Series/Feature/Segment 
Wisconsin Life: “Coffin Artist” 
Programming—Magazine Program 
Program/Special/Series 
Wisconsin Life: “Go with the Flow” 
Crafts Achievement—Off-Air Achievement 
Editor —Program (Non-News) 
Hip-Hop U: The First Wave Scholars 

 
International Serious Play Awards 
for Digital Games 
Digital Games for K-12—Silver 
Jo Wilder and the Capitol Case 

 
Wisconsin Broadcasters Association Awards 
Best News Writing—1st Place 
Here and Now: “Emerge” 
Best Series or Documentary—1st Place 
Wisconsin Water From the Air 
Sports Reporting—2nd Place 
Wisconsin Life: “Talia’s Team” 
Best Series or Documentary—2nd Place 
Jerry Apps “One-Room School” 
Best Website—1st Place 
WisContext.org 
Best Website—2nd Place 
Hip-Hop U: The First Wave Scholars 
Best Topical Promotion—1st Place 
Wisconsin Water From the Air 

Eric Sevareid Awards 
Talk/Public Affairs—1st Place 
Here and Now: “Teen Homelessness Special” 
Team Multimedia Storytelling—1st Place 
Wisconsin Life: “Food Traditions website” 
Soft Feature—1st Place 
Wisconsin Life: “Seeds of Hope” 
Documentary Special—Award of Merit 
Hip-Hop U: The First Wave Scholars 
Individual Multimedia Storytelling—Award of Merit 
WisContext.org: “Wisconsin’s Special Elections Battle (9 URLs)” 
Photo Journalism—Award of Merit 
Wisconsin Life: “Coffin Artist” 
Talk/Public Affairs—Award of Merit 
Wisconsin Life: “Go with the Flow” 
Team Multimedia Storytelling—Award of Merit 
Hip-Hop U: The First Wave Scholars website 

 
Milwaukee Press Club Awards 
Best Online Coverage of News—Gold 
WisContext.org: “Foxconn and Great Lakes Water (9 URLs)” 
Best Use of Multimedia—Gold 
WisContext.org: “The Geography of Partisan Gerrymandering” 
Best Business Story or Series—Silver 
WisContext.org: “The Direct Primary Care Business Model” 
Best Investigative Story or Series—Gold 
WisContext.org: “Special Elections and Legislative Vacancies” 
Best Explanatory Story or Series—Bronze 
WisContext.org: “Why and When Flags Fly at Half-Staff” 



Page 1 of 3 

II. All Regents 
Friday, February 7, 2020 

Item 14. 

 
APPROVAL OF ADMINISTRATIVE CODE RULE ORDER, ECONOMIC 

IMPACT ANALYSIS AND FISCAL ESTIMATE, NOTICE OF SUBMITTAL 
TO THE LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL, AND NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

FOR CHAPTER UWS 17 
 
 

REQUESTED ACTION 
 
Resolution 14. That, upon the recommendation of the President of the University of 

Wisconsin System, the Board of Regents approves the Administrative 
Code Rule Order, Economic Impact Analysis and Fiscal Estimate,  
Notice of Submittal to the Legislative Council, and Notice of Public 
Hearing for Ch. UWS 17, Wis. Admin. Code, “Nonacademic Student 
Misconduct.” 

 
 
SUMMARY 
 
The modifications in the proposed rule would amend Chapter UWS 17 to require, among 
other things, mandatory punishments for students who have been found responsible for 
misconduct that materially and substantially disrupted the free expression of others.  
 
On October 6, 2017, the Board approved Regent Policy Document 4-21 on Commitment to 
Academic Freedom and Freedom of Expression, setting forth the expectations of the Board 
regarding academic freedom and freedom of expression, and the consequences for those 
who violate the free expression of others.  Section 2 of the policy contains a paragraph 
stating:  
 

“A formal investigation and disciplinary hearing is required the second time a formal 
complaint alleges a student has engaged in violent or other disorderly misconduct 
that materially and substantially disrupted the free expression of others. Any 
student who has twice been found responsible for misconduct that materially and 
substantially disrupted the free expression of others at any time during the 
student’s enrollment shall be suspended for a minimum of one semester. Any 
student who has thrice been found responsible for misconduct that materially and 
substantially disrupted the free expression of others at any time during the 
student’s enrollment shall be expelled. This paragraph shall be effective upon 
amendment of Chapter UWS 17 of the Wisconsin Administrative Code under Chapter 227 



Page 2 of 3 

of the Wisconsin Statutes to include a parallel provision. The report regarding repeat 
violators described in Section 5 of this policy will not be required after the effective 
date of the amendment to Chapter UWS 17.” (emphasis added) 

 
Because Chapter UWS 17 of the Wisconsin Administrative Code has not yet been amended, 
as required by Wisconsin Statutes, Section 36.35(1), to include the mandatory discipline 
and the formal investigation and hearing described in Section 2 of the Regent policy, those 
provisions currently are not in effect. As noted in the Regent policy, those provisions will be 
effective upon completion of the rulemaking process. 
 
Modifications to Chapter UWS 17 would include new language that would require a formal 
investigation and disciplinary hearing the second time a formal complaint alleges that a 
student has engaged in violent or other disorderly misconduct that materially and 
substantially disrupted the free expression of others. The modifications would also require 
that any student who has twice been found responsible for misconduct that materially and 
substantially disrupted the free expression of others at any time during the student's 
enrollment be suspended for a minimum of one semester. Finally, the modifications would 
require that any student who has three times been found responsible for misconduct that 
materially and substantially disrupted the free expression of others at any time during the 
student's enrollment be expelled.   
 
The University’s scope statement for the amendment of Chapter UWS 17 to effectuate 
these penalties has been approved by the Governor and the DOA Secretary.  Additionally, 
pursuant to a directive by the State Legislature’s Joint Committee for Review of 
Administrative Rules (JCRAR), the University held a preliminary public hearing on the scope 
statement.  The Board of Regents also approved the final scope statement for the 
proposed rule.  
 
Accordingly, the next step in the rulemaking process is Board of Regents’ approval of (1) a 
rule order containing the proposed rule language and a plain language analysis 
(Attachment A); (2) an economic impact analysis/fiscal estimate on the rule (Attachment B); 
(3) a notice of submittal to the legislative council of the proposed rule (Attachment C); and 
(4) notice of public hearing on the proposed rule (Attachment D). 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The University of Wisconsin System (UW System) seeks to modify the Board of Regents 
(Board) administrative rule, known Chapter UWS 17, Wis. Admin. Code, “Nonacademic 
Student Misconduct.” All UW System institutions are affected by the proposed rule 
revisions. 
 



Page 3 of 3 

The Board has statutory authority for Chapter UWS 17 under s. 36.35, Wis. Stats., which 
reads as follows: “The board shall promulgate rules under ch. 227 governing student 
conduct and procedures for the administration of violations.” 
 
Previous Action or Discussion  
 
On October 6, 2017, the Board approved Regent Policy Document 4-21 on Commitment to 
Academic Freedom and Freedom of Expression. 
 
On July 12, 2019, the Board approved the Notice of Preliminary Hearing on Administrative 
Code Scope Statement for Chapter UWS 17. 
 
On October 11, 2019, the Board approved the Final Scope Statement for Chapter UWS 17. 
 
Related Policies  
 

• Regent Policy Document 4-21, “Commitment to Academic Freedom and Freedom of 
Expression” 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS  
 

A) Rule order containing proposed rule language and a plain language analysis of the 
rule; 

B) Economic impact analysis and fiscal estimate; 
C) Notice of submittal to the legislative council; and 
D) Notice of public hearing on the proposed rule. 

 

 



II. All Regents Item 14. Attachment A. 

STATE OF WISCONSIN 

BOARD OF REGENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN SYSTEM 

IN THE MATTER OF RULEMAKING PROCEEDINGS BEFORE THE BOARD OF 
REGENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN SYSTEM  

ORDER OF THE BOARD OF REGENTS AMENDING RULES IN CHAPTER UWS 17, 
WISCONSIN ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, RELATING TO STUDENT NONACADEMIC 

DISCIPLINARY PROCEEDINGS (SS 071-18) 

 

ORDER 
 

The Board of Regents of the University of Wisconsin System proposes to order the amendment 
of UWS 17.11 (2), (3), (4) (a) (intro.), 3. and 4. and 17.12 (1), (2), (3), and (4) (g); and the 
creation of UWS 17.10 (4), 17.11 (1g), and 17.11 (4) (c) (3), relating to student nonacademic 
disciplinary proceedings. 
 

ANALYSIS 

Analysis by the Board of Regents of the University of Wisconsin System. 

Explanation of Agency Statutory Rulemaking Authority: The Board of Regents of the 
University of Wisconsin System’s authority to promulgate the proposed rule is found in 
Wisconsin Statutes, Section 36.35, which states: “The board shall promulgate rules under ch. 227 
governing student conduct and procedure for the administration of violations.” Authority also is 
found in Wisconsin Statutes, Section 36.09(1), which states: “The primary responsibility for 
governance of the system shall be vested in the board which shall enact policies and promulgate 
rules for governing the system.” 

Plain Language Analysis: The proposed rule amends Chapter UWS 17.10, Chapter UWS 17.11, 
and Chapter UWS 17.12 to state: (1) that a student who has twice been found responsible for 
misconduct that materially and substantially disrupted the free speech rights of others during the 
student’s enrollment shall be suspended for a minimum of one semester; (2) that a student who 
has three times been found responsible for misconduct that materially and substantially disrupted 
the free speech rights of others during the student’s enrollment shall be expelled; and (3) that a 
formal investigation and disciplinary hearing is required the second time a formal complaint 
alleges that a student has engaged in violent or other disorderly misconduct that materially and 
substantially disrupted the free expression of others.   

The Board of Regents recognizes that incidents have occurred on its campuses where certain 
students have not respected the free speech rights of others and have disrupted events, including 
events involving outside, invited speakers. After reviewing the issue, the Board has determined 
that mandatory disciplinary penalties, in certain defined situations, are necessary to deter 
students from materially and substantially disrupting the free speech rights of others. 



2 
 

 

Comparison with existing or proposed federal statutes or regulations: The Federal Executive 
Order on Improving Free Inquiry, Transparency, and Accountability at Colleges and Universities 
issued on March 21, 2019, and related Federal Department of Education proposed rules on First 
Amendment freedoms on college and university campuses announced on January 16, 2020, are 
tangentially related to the proposed changes to UWS 17. 

Comparison with rules in adjacent states: Public universities in Illinois, Michigan, Iowa and 
Minnesota do not have administrative rules mandating student disciplinary penalties relating to 
disruption of free speech similar to those proposed in this rule. 

Statutes interpreted:  No information. 

Related statutes or rules:  No information. 

Summary of factual data and analytical methodologies:  No information. 

Analysis and supporting documents used to determine fiscal and economic impact and 
impact on small businesses in preparation of Fiscal Estimate and Economic Impact 
Analysis: The “Public Notice: Request for Public Comments on the Economic Impact of 
Proposed Rules” for UWS 17 was published in the State Register and made available on the 
Board of Regents’ website at: https://www.wisconsin.edu/regents/public-comment-form-chapter-
uws-17-wis-admin-code/.  The notice remained open for 14 days from January 13, 2020, through 
January 27, 2020. No comments on the economic impact of the proposed rule were received. 

Fiscal Estimate, Economic Impact Analysis, and effect on small business: The proposed rules 
do not have any economic or fiscal impact on specific businesses, on business sectors (including 
small businesses), or on the State of Wisconsin’s economy as a whole. The Fiscal Estimate and 
Economic Impact Analysis is attached. 

Public Comments: The Board of Regents will accept written comments until March 12, 2020. 
Comments may be submitted: (1) on the web at https://www.wisconsin.edu/regents/public-
comment-form-chapter-uws-17-wis-admin-code/ or at adminrules.wisconsin.gov; (2) by email to 
board@uwsa.edu; (3) at the public hearing scheduled from 9:00 a.m. to 11:00 a.m. on March 5, 
2020 in the Sonata Room, Gordon Dining and Event Center, 770 W. Dayton Street, Madison, 
Wisconsin; or (4) by mail to Office of the Board of Regents, 1860 Van Hise Hall, 1220 Linden 
Drive, Madison, Wisconsin 53706. 

Agency contact person: Tomas L. Stafford, Senior System Legal Counsel; 608-265-5319; 
tstafford@uwsa.edu. 

TEXT OF RULE 

 
SECTION 1.  UWS 17.10 (4) is created to read: 
 

https://www.wisconsin.edu/regents/public-comment-form-chapter-uws-17-wis-admin-code/
https://www.wisconsin.edu/regents/public-comment-form-chapter-uws-17-wis-admin-code/
https://www.wisconsin.edu/regents/public-comment-form-chapter-uws-17-wis-admin-code/
https://www.wisconsin.edu/regents/public-comment-form-chapter-uws-17-wis-admin-code/
mailto:board@uwsa.edu
mailto:tstafford@uwsa.edu


3 
 

UWS 17.10 (4) A student who has twice been found responsible for misconduct that materially 
and substantially disrupted the free speech rights of others at any time during the student’s 
enrollment shall be suspended for a minimum of one semester. A student who has thrice been 
found responsible for misconduct that materially and substantially disrupted the free speech 
rights of others at any time during the student’s enrollment shall be expelled. 
 
 
SECTION 2.  UWS 17.11 (1g) is created to read: 
 
UWS 17.11 (1g) MANDATORY INVESTIGATION AND HEARING. The investigating officer shall 
conduct an investigation the second or subsequent time that a formal complaint alleges that a 
particular student, in an incident unrelated to any prior formal complaints against that student, 
has engaged in violent or other disorderly conduct that materially disrupted the free speech rights 
of others. The investigating officer shall provide an investigative report to the hearing examiner 
or hearing committee for a required hearing under s. UWS 17.12 that may impose the 
disciplinary sanctions in s. UWS 17.10 (1) (i) and (j) and (4). For the purposes of this subsection, 
a formal complaint is a written complaint against a student filed with an institution alleging 
violent or other disorderly conduct that materially disrupted the free speech rights of others. 
 
 
SECTION 3.  UWS 17.11 (2), (3), (4) (a) (intro.), 3. and 4. are amended to read: 
 
UWS 17.11 (2) CONFERENCE WITH RESPONDENT.  When the investigating officer concludes that 
proceedings under this section are warranted, or proceedings are required under s. UWS 17.11 
(1g), the investigating officer shall promptly contact the respondent in person, by telephone, or 
by electronic mail to offer to discuss the matter, review the investigating officer’s basis for 
believing that the respondent engaged in nonacademic misconduct, or to review a formal 
complaint under s. UWS 17.11 (1g), and to afford the respondent an opportunity to respond.  If 
the respondent fails to respond to the investigating officer, the investigating officer may proceed 
to make a determination on the basis of the available information.  A complainant shall have all 
the rights provided to the respondent in this subsection. 
 
(3) DETERMINATION BY THE INVESTIGATING OFFICER THAT NO DISCIPLINARY SANCTION IS 
WARRANTED.  If, as a result of a discussion under sub. (2) or review of available information, the 
investigating officer determines that nonacademic misconduct did not in fact occur, or that no 
disciplinary sanction is warranted under the circumstances, the matter will be considered 
resolved without the necessity for further action except when an investigative report and hearing 
are required under s. UWS 17.11 (1g).  The investigating officer shall simultaneously notify the 
respondent and the complainant of this outcome and offer to discuss it separately with either one.  
If the investigating officer determines that nonacademic misconduct did not occur or that no 
disciplinary sanction is warranted, the complainant may appeal this decision in accordance with 
s. UWS 17.13. 
 
(4) (a) (intro.)  If, as a result of a discussion under sub. (2) or review of available information, the 
investigating officer determines that nonacademic misconduct did occur and that one or more of 
the disciplinary sanctions listed under s. UWS 17.10 (1) should be recommended, or if the 



4 
 

investigating officer determines that nonacademic misconduct did not occur, but the officer is 
required under s. UWS 17.11 (1g) to provide an investigative report, the investigating officer 
shall prepare a written report which shall contain all of the following: 
 
3.  Specification of the sanction sought, or if the investigating officer determined that 
nonacademic misconduct did not occur in a formal complaint processed under s. UWS 17.11 
(1g), specification of why a sanction is not appropriate. 
 
4.  Notice of the respondent’s right to a hearing or indication that a hearing is required under s. 
UWS 17.11 (1g). 
 
 
SECTION 4.  UWS 17.11 (4) (c) 3. is created to read: 
 
UWS 17.11 (4) (c) 3.  Where, under s. UWS 17.11 (1g), the disciplinary sanction sought or 
applicable to the respondent is provided for in s. UWS 17.10 (1) (i) and (j) and (4), the 
investigating officer shall forward a copy of the written report under par. (b) to the student affairs 
officer. The student affairs officer shall, upon receipt of the written report, proceed under s. 
UWS 17.12 to schedule a hearing on the matter. 
 
 
SECTION 5.  UWS 17.12 (1), (2), (3), and (4) (g) are amended to read: 
 
UWS 17.12 (1) A respondent who requests a hearing, or for whom a hearing is scheduled under 
s. UWS 17.11 (4) (c) 2. or 3., shall have the right to decide whether the matter will be heard by a 
hearing examiner or a hearing committee.  In cases of sexual assault, dating violence, domestic 
violence, stalking, or sexual harassment the university shall have the right to decide whether a 
hearing examiner or a hearing committee will hear the matter. 
 
(2) If a respondent requests a hearing under s. UWS 17.11 (4) (c) 1., or a hearing is required to 
be scheduled under s. UWS 17.11 (4) (c) 2. or 3., the student affairs officer shall take the 
necessary steps to convene the hearing and shall schedule it within 15 days of receipt of the 
request or written report.  The hearing shall be conducted within 45 days of receipt of the request 
or written report, unless a different time period is mutually agreed upon by the respondent and 
investigating officer, or is ordered or permitted by the hearing examiner or committee. 
 
(3) No less than 5 days in advance of the hearing, the hearing examiner or committee shall 
obtain from the investigating officer, in writing, a full explanation of the facts upon which the 
determination of misconduct was based, or if the investigating officer in a complaint under s. 
UWS 17.11 (1g) made a determination that no misconduct occurred, a full explanation in writing 
of the facts upon which that determination was based, and shall provide the respondent and the 
complainant with access to or copies of the investigating officer’s explanation, together with any 
other materials provided to the hearing examiner or committee by the investigating officer, 
including any additional available information of the type described in s. UWS 17.11 (4) (a) 2. 
 



5 
 

(4) (g)  The hearing examiner or committee may impose one or more of the disciplinary 
sanctions listed in s. UWS 17.10 (1) (a) to (g) that differs from the recommendation of the 
investigating officer.  Sanctions under s. UWS 17.10 (1) (h) to (j) may not be imposed unless 
previously recommended by the investigating officer, except in a complaint under s. UWS 17.11 
(1g) that is subject to the sanctions in s. UWS 17.10 (1) (i) and (4). 
 
SECTION 6. EFFECTIVE DATE: The rules adopted in this order shall take effect on the first 
day of the month following publication in the Wisconsin Administrative Register, pursuant to s. 
227.22 (2) (intro.), Stats. 

(END OF TEXT OF PROPOSED RULE) 
 

Attachment (Fiscal Estimate and Economic Impact Analysis) 

 



STATE OF WISCONSIN 
DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION 
DOA-2049 (R09/2016) 

DIVISION OF EXECUTIVE BUDGET AND FINANCE 
101 EAST WILSON STREET, 10TH FLOOR 

P.O. BOX 7864 
MADISON, WI  53707-7864 

FAX: (608) 267-0372 
ADMINISTRATIVE RULES 

Fiscal Estimate & Economic Impact Analysis 

1 

1. Type of Estimate and Analysis 2. Date
Original  Updated Corrected November 18, 2019

3. Administrative Rule Chapter, Title and Number (and Clearinghouse Number if applicable)
Chapter UWS 17, Student Nonacademic Disciplinary Procedures, UWS 17.10, 17.11, and 17.12 

4. Subject
Student nonacademic disciplinary procedures and mandatory discipline for certain offenses by students relating to the 
material and substantial disruption of the free speech rights of others. 
5. Fund Sources Affected 6. Chapter 20, Stats. Appropriations Affected

GPR  FED  PRO  PRS  SEG  SEG-S None 

7. Fiscal Effect of Implementing the Rule
 No Fiscal Effect 
 Indeterminate  

 Increase Existing Revenues 
 Decrease Existing Revenues 

 Increase Costs          Decrease Costs 
 Could Absorb Within Agency’s Budget 

8. The Rule Will Impact the Following (Check All That Apply)
State’s Economy
Local Government Units

 Specific Businesses/Sectors 
 Public Utility Rate Payers 
 Small Businesses (if checked, complete Attachment A) 

9. Estimate of Implementation and Compliance to Businesses, Local Governmental Units and Individuals, per s. 227.137(3)(b)(1).
$0.00
10. Would Implementation and Compliance Costs Businesses, Local Governmental Units and Individuals Be $10 Million or more Over

Any 2-year Period, per s. 227.137(3)(b)(2)?
Yes  No

11. Policy Problem Addressed by the Rule
Material and substantial disruption by students of the free speech rights of others that is injurious to the free exchange of 
ideas and associated debate critical to the University's function. 
12. Summary of the Businesses, Business Sectors, Associations Representing Business, Local Governmental Units, and Individuals

that may be Affected by the Proposed Rule that were Contacted for Comments.
None 

13. Identify the Local Governmental Units that Participated in the Development of this EIA.
None 
14. Summary of Rule’s Economic and Fiscal Impact on Specific Businesses, Business Sectors, Public Utility Rate Payers, Local

Governmental Units and the State’s Economy as a Whole (Include Implementation and Compliance Costs Expected to be
Incurred)

No economic and fiscal impact is anticipated. 
15. Benefits of Implementing the Rule and Alternative(s) to Implementing the Rule
Providing mandatory disciplinary penalties is intended to deter students from inappropriately disrupting the free speech 
rights of others. An alternative approach would be to provide these disciplinary penalties as recommended penalties 
rather than mandatory penalties, but that approach does not appear to be sufficient to address this concern.  Another 
alternative is not changing current disciplinary processes and penalties for students in this area, however current 
processes and penalties have not been deemed to be sufficiently effective.  
16. Long Range Implications of Implementing the Rule
The availability and enforcement of mandatory disciplinary penalties leading to enhanced deterence of material and substantial
disruption of speakers and events by students.
17. Compare With Approaches Being Used by Federal Government
The Federal government, on information and belief, has not legislated or regulated on this issue. The Federal Executive 
Order on Improving Free Inquiry, Transparency, and Accountability at Colleges and Universities issued on March 21, 

II. All Regents Item 14. Attachment B.



STATE OF WISCONSIN 
DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION 
DOA-2049 (R09/2016) 

DIVISION OF EXECUTIVE BUDGET AND FINANCE 
101 EAST WILSON STREET, 10TH FLOOR 

P.O. BOX 7864 
MADISON, WI  53707-7864 

FAX: (608) 267-0372 
ADMINISTRATIVE RULES 

Fiscal Estimate & Economic Impact Analysis 
 

2 
 

2019, is tangentially related to this issue.  

18. Compare With Approaches Being Used by Neighboring States (Illinois, Iowa, Michigan and Minnesota) 
Public universities in these neighboring states have individual nonacademic student disciplinary policies and procedures. 
On information and belief, these universities do not have mandatory student disciplinary penalties relating to disruption 
of free speech similar to those proposed in this rule. 
19. Contact Name 20. Contact Phone Number 

Tomas L. Stafford, UW System, Senior System Legal Counsel 608-265-5319 

This document can be made available in alternate formats to individuals with disabilities upon request. 



STATE OF WISCONSIN 
DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION 
DOA-2049 (R09/2016) 

DIVISION OF EXECUTIVE BUDGET AND FINANCE 
101 EAST WILSON STREET, 10TH FLOOR 

P.O. BOX 7864 
MADISON, WI  53707-7864 

FAX: (608) 267-0372 
ADMINISTRATIVE RULES 

Fiscal Estimate & Economic Impact Analysis 
 

3 
 

 
ATTACHMENT A 

 
1.  Summary of Rule’s Economic and Fiscal Impact on Small Businesses (Separately for each Small Business Sector, Include 

Implementation and Compliance Costs Expected to be Incurred) 
      
2. Summary of the data sources used to measure the Rule’s impact on Small Businesses  
      
3. Did the agency consider the following methods to reduce the impact of the Rule on Small Businesses? 

 Less Stringent Compliance or Reporting Requirements  
 Less Stringent Schedules or Deadlines for Compliance or Reporting 
 Consolidation or Simplification of Reporting Requirements 
 Establishment of performance standards in lieu of Design or Operational Standards 
 Exemption of Small Businesses from some or all requirements 
 Other, describe:  

      

4. Describe the methods incorporated into the Rule that will reduce its impact on Small Businesses 
      
5. Describe the Rule’s Enforcement Provisions 
      
6. Did the Agency prepare a Cost Benefit Analysis (if Yes, attach to form) 

 Yes      No 

 



II. All Regents Item 14. Attachment C. 

Notice of Submittal of Proposed Rule  

to Legislative Council Rules Clearinghouse 

 

On February 10, 2020, the Board of Regents of the University of Wisconsin System submitted a 
proposed rule to the Wisconsin Legislative Council Clearinghouse pursuant to s.227.14(1), Wis. 
Stats. 

 

Analysis 

The proposed rule affects Chapter UWS 17, relating to student nonacademic disciplinary 
procedures. 

 

Statement of Scope 

The scope statement for this rule, SS 071-18, was approved by the Governor on June 14, 2018, 
published in Register No. 750B on June 25, 2018, and approved by the Board of Regents of the 
University of Wisconsin System on December 6, 2019.   

 

Agency Procedure for Promulgation 

A public hearing is required and will be held on a date to be determined. 

 

Agency Organizational Unit Primarily Responsible for Promulgating Rule 

The Board of Regents of the University of Wisconsin System. 

 

Agency Contact Person 

Tomas L. Stafford, Senior System Legal Counsel, 1220 Linden Drive, Van Hise Hall, Room 
1844, Madison, WI; tstafford@uwsa.edu; 608-265-5319. 

 

 

 

 

mailto:tstafford@uwsa.edu


NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
BOARD OF REGENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN SYSTEM 

 
Thursday, March 5, 2020 
9:00 a.m. to 11:00 a.m. 

Gordon Dining and Event Center – Sonata Room 
770 W. Dayton Street, Madison, Wisconsin 

 
 
The Board of Regents of the University of Wisconsin System will hold a public hearing on 
amendments to Chapters UWS 17, Wis. Admin. Code, to address (1) student discipline related to 
violent or other disorderly misconduct that materially and substantially disrupts the free expression 
of others; (2) when a formal investigation and disciplinary hearing is required; and (3) mandatory 
sanctions for students found responsible for misconduct that materially and substantially disrupts 
the free expression of others.   
 
Appearances at the Hearing and Submittal of Written Comments 
 
UW System personnel or a member of the Board of Regents will preside over the public hearing on 
behalf of the Board of Regents to provide interested persons with the opportunity to make an oral 
presentation on the proposed amendments to the rule. Each individual who registers to speak will be 
given up to five minutes to give an oral presentation. Persons making oral presentations are 
requested to also submit their comments in writing.  
 
The Board of Regents will accept written comments until March 12, 2020. Comments may be 
submitted: (1) on the web at https://www.wisconsin.edu/regents/public-comment-form-chapter-
uws-17-wis-admin-code/; (2) by email to board@uwsa.edu; (3) at the public hearing; or (4) by mail 
to Office of the Board of Regents, 1860 Van Hise Hall, 1220 Linden Drive, Madison, Wisconsin 
53706. 
 
To request a paper copy of the rule order, which contains the rule language and the plain language 
rule analysis, contact the Office of the Board of Regents at the address above or by email at 
board@uwsa.edu or phone at (608) 262-2324. The rule order is also available for review at 
https://www.wisconsin.edu/regents/public-comment-form-chapter-uws-17-wis-admin-code/.  This 
site includes additional documents associated with this proposed permanent rule promulgation. 
 
Initial Regulatory Flexibility Analysis 
 
The proposed rules will not have an effect on small businesses, as defined under s. 227.114(1), 
Stats. 
 
Accessibility  
 
Persons with special needs or circumstances regarding communication or accessibility at the 
hearing should call Jess Lathrop, Executive Director, Office of the Board of Regents, at (608) 262-
2324 prior to the hearing date. Accommodations such as ASL interpreters, English translators, or 
materials in audio format will be made available on request to the fullest extent possible. 

https://www.wisconsin.edu/regents/public-comment-form-chapter-uws-17-wis-admin-code/
https://www.wisconsin.edu/regents/public-comment-form-chapter-uws-17-wis-admin-code/
mailto:board@uwsa.edu
mailto:board@uwsa.edu
https://www.wisconsin.edu/regents/public-comment-form-chapter-uws-17-wis-admin-code/


Page 1 of 3 

II. All Regents 
Friday, February 7, 2020 

Item 15. 

 
APPROVAL OF ADMINISTRATIVE CODE RULE ORDER, ECONOMIC 

IMPACT ANALYSIS AND FISCAL ESTIMATE, NOTICE OF SUBMITTAL 
TO THE LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL, AND NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

FOR CHAPTER UWS 18 
 
 

REQUESTED ACTION 
 
Resolution 15. That, upon the recommendation of the President of the University of 

Wisconsin System, the Board of Regents approves the Administrative 
Code Proposed Rule Order, Economic Impact Analysis and Fiscal 
Estimate, Notice of Submittal to the Legislative Council, and Notice of 
Public Hearing for Ch. UWS 18, Wis. Admin. Code, “Conduct on 
University Lands.” 

 
 
SUMMARY 
 
UW institutions currently have authority to regulate conduct on University property, 
including authority to prohibit certain offenses against public peace and order.  That 
authority includes imposing fines on individuals that intentionally harass another individual 
through electronic communications or telephone calls. The proposed rule modification 
would change the language regarding what constitutes an offense against public peace and 
order through email or other electronic communication or telephone use under UWS 
18.11(1) and (3). 
 
The proposed amendments to UWS Chapter 18 would change the language in UWS 
18.11(1) and (3), which generally prohibit a person from using email or other forms of 
electronic communications or phones to intentionally harass another person. The current 
language prohibits such action when undertaken “with the intent to harass, annoy or 
offend another person.” This includes communications using obscene, lewd or profane 
language or suggesting any lewd or lascivious act sent with intent to harass. 
 
The proposed changes would amend Chapter UWS 18.11(1) and Chapter UWS 18.11(3) to: 
(a) remove the words “annoy” and “offend”; (b) add language containing the legal standard 
for hostile environment harassment set forth by the U.S. Supreme Court; (c) expand 
protection from electronic or telephonic harassment beyond those communications that 
involve obscene, lewd or profane language, or language suggesting any lewd or lascivious 



Page 2 of 3 

act, as currently stated in the code; and (d) add language prohibiting threatening or 
intimidating electronic or telephonic communications that meet the legal standard for a 
“true threat” as set forth by the U.S. Supreme Court. 
 
The University’s proposed scope statement for the amendment of Chapter UWS 18 to 
effectuate these penalties has been approved by the Governor and the DOA Secretary.  
Additionally, pursuant to a directive by the State Legislature’s Joint Committee for Review of 
Administrative Rules (JCRAR), the University held a preliminary public hearing on the scope 
statement.  The Board of Regents also approved the final scope statement for the 
proposed rule.  Accordingly, the next step in the rulemaking process is Board of Regents’ 
approval of (1) a rule order containing proposed rule language and a plain language 
analysis of the rule (Attachment A); (2) an economic impact analysis and fiscal estimate 
(Attachment B); (3) a notice of submittal to the legislative council (Attachment C); and (4) a 
notice of public hearing on the proposed rule (Attachment D). 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The University of Wisconsin System (UW System) seeks to modify the University of 
Wisconsin Board of Regents (Board) administrative rule, known as Ch. UWS 18, Wis. Admin. 
Code, “Conduct on University Lands.” All UW System institutions would be affected by the 
proposed rule revisions articulated in the related scope statement. 
 
The Board has statutory authority for Chapter UWS 18 under s. 36.09(1), Wis. Stats., which 
reads as follows: “The primary responsibility for governance of the system shall be vested 
in the board which shall enact policies and promulgate rules for governing the system.” 
Additional statutory authority comes from s. 36.11(1)(a), Wis. Stats., which states “The 
board may promulgate rules under ch.227 to protect the lives, health and safety of persons 
on property under its jurisdiction and to protect such property and prevent obstruction of 
the functions of the system.” The Board’s statutory authority for Chapter UWS 18 also 
originates in s. 36.11(1)(b), Wis. Stats., which provides “The board may promulgate rules 
under ch.227 for the management of all property under its jurisdiction, for the care and 
preservation thereof and for the promotion and preservation of the orderly operation of 
system in any or all or its authorized activities and in any or all of its institutions….” 
 
Previous Action or Discussion 
 
On October 11, 2019, the Board approved the Notice of Preliminary Hearing on 
Administrative Code Scope Statement for Chapter UWS 18. 
 
On December 6, 2019, the Board approved the Final Administrative Code Scope Statement 
for Chapter UWS 18. 
 



Page 3 of 3 

Related Policies  
 

• Regent Policy Document 4-21, “Commitment to Academic Freedom and Freedom of 
Expression” 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS  
 

A) Rule order containing proposed rule language and a plain language analysis of the 
rule; 

B) Economic impact analysis and fiscal estimate; 
C) Notice of submittal to the legislative council; and 
D) Notice of public hearing on the proposed rule. 



II. All Regents Item 15. Attachment A. 

STATE OF WISCONSIN 

BOARD OF REGENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN SYSTEM 

IN THE MATTER OF RULEMAKING PROCEEDINGS BEFORE THE BOARD OF 
REGENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN SYSTEM  

ORDER OF THE BOARD OF REGENTS AMENDING RULES IN CHAPTER UWS 18, 
WISCONSIN ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, CONDUCT ON UNIVERSITY LANDS (SS 

013-19) 

 

ORDER 
 

The Board of Regents of the University of Wisconsin System proposes to order the amendment 
of UWS 18.11 (1) (a), (b), (e) and (f) and 18.11 (3) (d); and the creation of 18.11 (1) (h) and 
18.11 (3) (g), relating to conduct on University lands. 
 

ANALYSIS 

Analysis by the Board of Regents of the University of Wisconsin System. 

Explanation of Agency Statutory Rulemaking Authority: The Board of Regents of the 
University of Wisconsin System’s authority to promulgate the proposed rule is found in 
Wisconsin Statutes, Section 36.11(1)(a), which states: “The board may promulgate rules under 
ch. 227 to protect the lives, health and safety of persons on property under its jurisdiction and to 
protect such property and to prevent obstruction of the functions of the system.”  Authority also 
is found in Wisconsin Statutes, Section 36.11(1)(c), which states: “The board may promulgate 
rules under ch. 227 for the management of all property under its jurisdiction, for the care and 
preservation thereof and for the promotion and preservation of the orderly operation of the 
system in any or all or its authorized activities and in any or all of its institutions.” Finally, 
authority is found in Wisconsin Statutes, Section 36.09(1), which states: “The primary 
responsibility for governance of the system shall be vested in the board which shall enact 
policies and promulgate rules for governing the system.” 

Plain Language Analysis: The proposed rule amends Chapter UWS 18.11(1) and Chapter UWS 
18.11(3) to: (a) remove the words “annoy” and “offend”; (b) add language containing the legal 
standard for hostile environment harassment set forth by the U.S. Supreme Court; (c) expand 
protection from electronic or telephonic harassment beyond those communications that involve 
obscene, lewd or profane language, or language suggesting any lewd or lascivious act, as 
currently stated in the code; and (d) add language prohibiting threatening or intimidating 
electronic or telephonic communications that meets the legal standard for a “true threat” as set 
forth by the U.S. Supreme Court. 

The Board of Regents recognizes its duty to protect members of the University community from 
electronic or telephonic harassment while also respecting individual free speech rights.  After 
reviewing the issue, the Board has determined that the proposed amendments to UWS 18.11(1) 



2 
 

and UWS 18.11(3) are necessary to address concerns that current code language may impinge on 
free speech rights and also to expand protections against electronic or telephonic harassment 
beyond those currently contained in the code. 

Comparison with existing or proposed federal statutes or regulations: No information. 

Comparison with rules in adjacent states: Public universities in Illinois, Michigan, Iowa and 
Minnesota do not have comparable administrative rules.  

Statutes interpreted: No information. 

Related statutes or rules: Wisconsin Statutes, Section 947.012; Section 947.0125; and Section 
947.013. 

Summary of factual data and analytical methodologies:  No information. 

Analysis and supporting documents used to determine fiscal and economic impact and 
impact on small businesses in preparation of Fiscal Estimate and Economic Impact 
Analysis: The “Public Notice: Request for Public Comments on the Economic Impact of 
Proposed Rules” for UWS 18 was published in the State Register and made available on the 
Board of Regents’ website at: https://www.wisconsin.edu/regents/public-comment-form-chapter-
uws-18-wis-admin-code/.  The notice remained open for 14 days from January 13, 2020, through 
January 27, 2020. No comments on the economic impact of the proposed rule were received. 

Fiscal Estimate, Economic Impact Analysis, and Effect on Small Business: The proposed 
rules do not have any economic or fiscal impact on specific businesses, on business sectors 
(including small businesses), or on the State of Wisconsin’s economy as a whole. The Fiscal 
Estimate and Economic Impact Analysis is attached. 

Public Comments: The Board of Regents will accept written comments until March 12, 2020. 
Comments may be submitted: (1) on the web at https://www.wisconsin.edu/regents/public-
comment-form-chapter-uws-18-wis-admin-code or at adminrules.wisconsin.gov; (2) by email to 
board@uwsa.edu; (3) at the public hearing scheduled from 11:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. on March 5, 
2020 in the Sonata Room, Gordon Dining and Event Center, 770 W. Dayton Street, Madison, 
Wisconsin; or (4) by mail to Office of the Board of Regents, 1860 Van Hise Hall, 1220 Linden 
Drive, Madison, Wisconsin 53706. 

Agency contact person: Tomas L. Stafford, Senior System Legal Counsel; 608-265-5319; 
tstafford@uwsa.edu. 

TEXT OF PROPOSED RULE 

 

SECTION 1.  UWS 18.11 (1) (a), (b), (e) and (f) are amended to read: 

 

UWS 18.11 (1) (a)  No person may, with intent to harass, annoy or offend another person, send 
by sending a message to the person on an electronic mail or other computerized communication 

https://www.wisconsin.edu/regents/public-comment-form-chapter-uws-18-wis-admin-code/
https://www.wisconsin.edu/regents/public-comment-form-chapter-uws-18-wis-admin-code/
https://www.wisconsin.edu/regents/public-comment-form-chapter-uws-18-wis-admin-code
https://www.wisconsin.edu/regents/public-comment-form-chapter-uws-18-wis-admin-code
mailto:board@uwsa.edu
mailto:tstafford@uwsa.edu


3 
 

system and in that, including a message use that uses any obscene, lewd, or profane language or 
suggest suggests any lewd or lascivious act.  For the purposes of this paragraph, a message is 
harassing if it is discriminatory, targeted, and so severe, pervasive, and objectively offensive that 
it can be said to deprive the recipient of educational or employment opportunities or benefits. 
 
(b)  No person may, with intent to harass, annoy or offend another person, send by sending a 
message on an electronic mail or other computerized communication system with the reasonable 
expectation that the person will receive the message and in that, including a message use that uses 
any obscene, lewd or profane language or suggest suggests any lewd or lascivious act.  For the 
purposes of this paragraph, a message is harassing if it is discriminatory, targeted, and so severe, 
pervasive, and objectively offensive that it could deprive the recipient of educational or 
employment opportunities or benefits. 
 
(e)  No person may, with intent to harass or annoy another person, send a message to the person 
on an electronic mail or other computerized communication system while intentionally preventing 
or attempting to prevent the disclosure of his or her own identity. 
 
(f)  No person may, while intentionally preventing or attempting to prevent the disclosure of his 
or her identity and with intent to harass or annoy another person, send a message on an electronic 
mail or other computerized communication system with the reasonable expectation that the person 
will receive the message. 
 
SECTION 2.  UWS 18.11 (1) (h) is created to read: 

 

UWS 18.11 (1) (h) No person may send a message to a person on an electronic mail or other 
computerized communication system that uses threatening or intimidating language. For the 
purposes of this paragraph, a message is threatening if the speaker means to communicate a serious 
expression of an intent to commit an act of unlawful violence to a particular person or group of 
persons, and a message is intimidating if the speaker directs a threat to a person or group of persons 
with the intent of placing that person or group of persons in fear of bodily harm or death. 
 

SECTION 3.  UWS 18.11 (3) (d) is amended to read: 

 
UWS 18.11 (3) (d)  No person, with the intent may use a telephone to harass or offend, may 
telephone another and use another person, including using any obscene, lewd, or profane language 
or suggest suggesting any lewd or lascivious act.  For the purposes of this paragraph, harassment 
occurs if the language used is discriminatory, targeted, and so severe, pervasive, and objectively 
offensive that it can be said to deprive the recipient of educational or employment opportunities or 
benefits. 
 
SECTION 4.  UWS 18.11 (3) (g) is created to read: 

 
UWS 18.11 (3) (g) No person may use a telephone to threaten or intimidate another person. For 
the purposes of this paragraph, a threat occurs if the speaker means to communicate a serious 



4 
 

expression of an intent to commit an act of unlawful violence to a particular person or group of 
persons, and intimidation occurs if the speaker directs a threat to a person or group of persons with 
the intent of placing that person or group of persons in fear of bodily harm or death. 
 
SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE: The rules adopted in this order shall take effect on the first 
day of the month following publication in the Wisconsin Administrative Register, pursuant to s. 
227.22 (2) (intro.), Stats. 
 

(END OF TEXT OF RULE) 
 

Attachment (Fiscal Estimate and Economic Impact Analysis) 

 



STATE OF WISCONSIN 
DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION 
DOA-2049 (R09/2016) 

DIVISION OF EXECUTIVE BUDGET AND FINANCE 
101 EAST WILSON STREET, 10TH FLOOR 

P.O. BOX 7864 
MADISON, WI  53707-7864 

FAX: (608) 267-0372 
ADMINISTRATIVE RULES 

Fiscal Estimate & Economic Impact Analysis 

1 

1. Type of Estimate and Analysis 2. Date
Original  Updated Corrected January __, 2020

3. Administrative Rule Chapter, Title and Number (and Clearinghouse Number if applicable)
Chapter UWS 18, Conduct on University Lands, UWS 18.11(1) and UWS 18.11(3) 

4. Subject
Conduct on University lands involving prohibition on the use of electronic communications and telephones to harass 
another person. 
5. Fund Sources Affected 6. Chapter 20, Stats. Appropriations Affected

GPR  FED  PRO  PRS  SEG  SEG-S None 

7. Fiscal Effect of Implementing the Rule
 No Fiscal Effect 
 Indeterminate  

 Increase Existing Revenues 
 Decrease Existing Revenues 

 Increase Costs          Decrease Costs 
 Could Absorb Within Agency’s Budget 

8. The Rule Will Impact the Following (Check All That Apply)
State’s Economy
Local Government Units

 Specific Businesses/Sectors 
 Public Utility Rate Payers 
 Small Businesses (if checked, complete Attachment A) 

9. Estimate of Implementation and Compliance to Businesses, Local Governmental Units and Individuals, per s. 227.137(3)(b)(1).
$0.00
10. Would Implementation and Compliance Costs Businesses, Local Governmental Units and Individuals Be $10 Million or more Over

Any 2-year Period, per s. 227.137(3)(b)(2)?
Yes  No

11. Policy Problem Addressed by the Rule
Prohibition of harassment of persons by use of electronic communications or the telephone to preserve a safe and 
respectful campus environment critical to the University's function. 
12. Summary of the Businesses, Business Sectors, Associations Representing Business, Local Governmental Units, and Individuals

that may be Affected by the Proposed Rule that were Contacted for Comments.
None 

13. Identify the Local Governmental Units that Participated in the Development of this EIA.
None 
14. Summary of Rule’s Economic and Fiscal Impact on Specific Businesses, Business Sectors, Public Utility Rate Payers, Local

Governmental Units and the State’s Economy as a Whole (Include Implementation and Compliance Costs Expected to be
Incurred)

No economic and fiscal impact is anticipated. 
15. Benefits of Implementing the Rule and Alternative(s) to Implementing the Rule
The Board of Regents recognizes its duty to protect members of the University community from electronic or telephonic 
harassment while also respecting individual free speech rights.  After reviewing the issue, the Board has determined that 
the proposed amendments to UWS 18.11(1) and UWS 18.11(3) are necessary to address concerns that current code 
language may impinge on free speech rights and also to expand protections against electronic or telephonic harassment 
beyond those currently contained in the code. Alternatives include leaving the language as it currently is and not 
addressing stated concerns or expanding the protections in the code. 
16. Long Range Implications of Implementing the Rule

17. Compare With Approaches Being Used by Federal Government
The Federal government generally has not legislated or regulated on improper conduct on university lands with the 

II. All Regents Item 15. Attachment B.



STATE OF WISCONSIN 
DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION 
DOA-2049 (R09/2016) 

DIVISION OF EXECUTIVE BUDGET AND FINANCE 
101 EAST WILSON STREET, 10TH FLOOR 

P.O. BOX 7864 
MADISON, WI  53707-7864 

FAX: (608) 267-0372 
ADMINISTRATIVE RULES 

Fiscal Estimate & Economic Impact Analysis 
 

2 
 

exception of federal statutory and rule prohibitions on sexual harassment and sexual violence under Title VII and Title 
IX and prohibitions on racial harassment under Title VI. The federal government currently is promulgating additional 
federal administrative rules under Title IX on sexual harassment and violence. 
18. Compare With Approaches Being Used by Neighboring States (Illinois, Iowa, Michigan and Minnesota) 
Public universities in Illinois, Michigan, Iowa and Minnesota have individual policies and procedures regulating conduct 
on their property and lands. On information and belief, the public universities in these four, neighboring states have 
policies regulating conduct on their property, and policies specifically relating to electronic or telephonic harassment, 
similar to the proposed rule here. 
19. Contact Name 20. Contact Phone Number 

Tomas L. Stafford, UW System, Senior System Legal Counsel 608-265-5319 

This document can be made available in alternate formats to individuals with disabilities upon request. 



STATE OF WISCONSIN 
DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION 
DOA-2049 (R09/2016) 

DIVISION OF EXECUTIVE BUDGET AND FINANCE 
101 EAST WILSON STREET, 10TH FLOOR 

P.O. BOX 7864 
MADISON, WI  53707-7864 

FAX: (608) 267-0372 
ADMINISTRATIVE RULES 

Fiscal Estimate & Economic Impact Analysis 
 

3 
 

 
ATTACHMENT A 

 
1.  Summary of Rule’s Economic and Fiscal Impact on Small Businesses (Separately for each Small Business Sector, Include 

Implementation and Compliance Costs Expected to be Incurred) 
      
2. Summary of the data sources used to measure the Rule’s impact on Small Businesses  
      
3. Did the agency consider the following methods to reduce the impact of the Rule on Small Businesses? 

 Less Stringent Compliance or Reporting Requirements  
 Less Stringent Schedules or Deadlines for Compliance or Reporting 
 Consolidation or Simplification of Reporting Requirements 
 Establishment of performance standards in lieu of Design or Operational Standards 
 Exemption of Small Businesses from some or all requirements 
 Other, describe:  

      

4. Describe the methods incorporated into the Rule that will reduce its impact on Small Businesses 
      
5. Describe the Rule’s Enforcement Provisions 
      
6. Did the Agency prepare a Cost Benefit Analysis (if Yes, attach to form) 

 Yes      No 

 



II. All Regents Item 15. Attachment C. 
 

Notice of Submittal of Proposed Rule  

to Legislative Council Rules Clearinghouse 

 

On February 10, 2020, the Board of Regents of the University of Wisconsin System submitted a 
proposed rule to the Wisconsin Legislative Council Clearinghouse pursuant to s.227.14(1), Wis. 
Stats. 

 

Analysis 

The proposed rule affects Chapter UWS 18, relating to conduct on university lands. 

 

Statement of Scope 

The scope statement for this rule, SS 013-19, was approved by the Governor on November 20, 
2018, published in Register No. 757A on January 22, 2019, and approved by the Board of 
Regents of the University of Wisconsin System on December 6, 2019.   

 

Agency Procedure for Promulgation 

A public hearing is required and will be held on a date to be determined. 

 

Agency Organizational Unit Primarily Responsible for Promulgating Rule 

The Board of Regents of the University of Wisconsin System. 

 

Agency Contact Person 

Tomas L. Stafford, Senior System Legal Counsel, 1220 Linden Drive, Van Hise Hall, Room 
1844, Madison, WI; tstafford@uwsa.edu; 608-265-5319. 

 

 

 

mailto:tstafford@uwsa.edu


NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
BOARD OF REGENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN SYSTEM 

 
Thursday, March 5, 2020 
11:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. 

Sonata Room  
Gordon Dining and Event Center, Madison, Wisconsin 

770 W. Dayton Street, Madison, Wisconsin 
 
 
The Board of Regents of the University of Wisconsin System will hold a public hearing on  
proposed amendments to Chapter UWS 18, Wis. Admin. Code, to address conduct on University 
lands related to improper use of email and other electronic communications and of telephones to 
harass another person.   
 
Appearances at the Hearing and Submittal of Written Comments 
 
UW System personnel or a member of the Board of Regents will preside over the public hearing on 
behalf of the Board of Regents to provide interested persons with the opportunity to make an oral 
presentation on the proposed amendments to the rule. Each individual who registers to speak will be 
given up to five minutes to give an oral presentation. Persons making oral presentations are 
requested to also submit their comments in writing.  
 
The Board of Regents will accept written comments until March 12, 2020. Comments may be 
submitted: (1) on the web at https://www.wisconsin.edu/regents/public-comment-form-chapter-
uws-18-wis-admin-code/; (2) by email to board@uwsa.edu; (3) at the public hearing; or (4) by mail 
to Office of the Board of Regents, 1860 Van Hise Hall, 1220 Linden Drive, Madison, Wisconsin 
53706. 
 
To request a paper copy of the rule order which contains the rule language and the plain language 
rule analysis, contact the Office of the Board of Regents at the address above or by email at 
board@uwsa.edu or phone at (608) 262-2324. The rule order is also available for review at 
https://www.wisconsin.edu/regents/public-comment-form-chapter-uws-18-wis-admin-code/.  This 
site includes additional documents associated with this proposed permanent rule promulgation. 
 
Initial Regulatory Flexibility Analysis 
 
The proposed rules will not have an effect on small businesses, as defined under s. 227.114(1), 
Stats. 
 
Accessibility  
 
Persons with special needs or circumstances regarding communication or accessibility at the 
hearing should call Jess Lathrop, Executive Director, Office of the Board of Regents, at (608) 262-
2324 prior to the hearing date. Accommodations such as ASL interpreters, English translators, or 
materials in audio format will be made available on request to the fullest extent possible. 

https://www.wisconsin.edu/regents/public-comment-form-chapter-uws-18-wis-admin-code/
https://www.wisconsin.edu/regents/public-comment-form-chapter-uws-18-wis-admin-code/
mailto:board@uwsa.edu
mailto:board@uwsa.edu
https://www.wisconsin.edu/regents/public-comment-form-chapter-uws-18-wis-admin-code/


01-27-2020 
 

 
BOARD OF REGENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN SYSTEM 

COMMITTEES AND OTHER APPOINTMENTS 
 

President:  Andrew S. Petersen 
Vice President:  Michael Grebe 

 
 
STANDING COMMITTEES* 

 

Executive Committee 
Andrew S. Petersen (Chair) 
Michael Grebe (Vice Chair) 
Robert Atwell 
Eve Hall 
Mike Jones 
Tracey Klein 
Ed Manydeeds 
Janice Mueller 

 
 
Audit Committee 
Ed Manydeeds (Chair) 
Janice Mueller (Vice Chair)  
José Delgado 
Karen Walsh 

 
 
Business and Finance Committee 
Janice Mueller (Chair) 
Scott Beightol (Vice Chair)  
Robert Atwell 
José Delgado 
Mike Jones  
Becky Levzow 
Cris Peterson 
Torrey Tiedeman 
 

 
Capital Planning and Budget Committee 
Mike Jones (Chair) 
Jason Plante (Vice Chair) 
Scott Beightol 
Tracey Klein   
Carolyn Stanford Taylor 
Olivia Woodmansee 

Education Committee   
 Tracey Klein (Chair) 
 Ed Manydeeds (Vice Chair) 
 Eve Hall 
 Jason Plante 
 Carolyn Stanford Taylor 
 Karen Walsh 
Olivia Woodmansee 
 
 
Research, Economic Development, and 

Innovation Committee 
Robert Atwell (Chair) 
Cris Peterson (Vice Chair) 
Eve Hall  
Becky Levzow 
Torrey Tiedeman 

 
 
Personnel Matters Review Committee 
Scott Beightol (Chair) 
Robert Atwell  
Becky Levzow 
Jason Plante  
Karen Walsh 

 
 
Committee on Student Discipline and Other 

Student Appeals 
Cris Peterson (Chair) 
Scott Beightol 
Ed Manydeeds  
Olivia Woodmansee 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

*The Regent President and Vice President serve as ex-officio voting members of all committees. 



OTHER COMMITTEES* 
& APPOINTMENTS 

 
UW System Presidential Search & Screen 
Committee 
Michael Grebe (Chair) 
Rebecca Blank (Chancellor, UW-Madison) 
Mike Jones 
Edmund Manydeeds III 
Regina Millner (Regent Emerita) 
Betsy Morgan (Provost, UW-La Crosse) 
Andrew S. Petersen 
Torrey Tiedeman 
Renée Wachter (Chancellor, UW-Superior) 
 
 
Special Regent Committee for the  
UW-Green Bay Chancellor Search 
Robert Atwell (Chair) 
Scott Beightol 
Becky Levzow 
Karen Walsh 
 
 
Academic Staff Excellence Awards 

Committee 
Janice Mueller (Chair) 
Robert Atwell 
José Delgado 
Karen Walsh 

 
 
Diversity Awards Committee 
Eve Hall (Chair) 
Becky Levzow 
Cris Peterson 
Torrey Tiedeman 

 
 
Teaching Excellence Awards Committee 
Mike Jones (Chair) 
Tracey Klein 
Ed Manydeeds 
Carolyn Stanford Taylor  

 
 

Educational Communications Board – 
Regent Member 

José Delgado 
 
 
Higher Educational Aids Board – 

Regent Member 
José Delgado (Gubernatorial appointment) 

 
Hospital Authority Board – 

Regent Members 
Mike Jones 
Janice Mueller 
Karen Walsh 

 
 
Research Park Board – 
Regent Member  
Karen Walsh 

 
 
Wisconsin Partnership Program – 

Regent Liaison 
Tracey Klein 

 
 
Wisconsin Technical College System 

Board – Regent Member 
Eve Hall 

 
 
Liaison to Association of Governing 

Boards 
Scott Beightol 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

*The Regent President and Vice President serve as ex-officio voting members of all committees. 



*Hosted by the Board of Regents Office at Gordon Dining & Event Center 
**Hosted by the Board of Regents Office at Van Hise Hall 

UW SYSTEM BOARD OF REGENTS 
REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE – 2019 

 
February 7-8, 2019 – Hosted by UW-Madison 
 
March 7, 2019 – In Madison* 
  
April 4-5, 2019 – Hosted by UW-Whitewater  In Madison** 
 
June 6-7, 2019 – Hosted by UW-Milwaukee 
 
July 11-12, 2019 – In Madison* 
 
October 10-11, 2019 – Hosted by UW-Superior 
 
November 7, 2019— In Madison* 
 
December 5-6, 2019 – In Madison*  Hosted by UW-Whitewater 

 

UW SYSTEM BOARD OF REGENTS 
REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE – 2020 

 
February 6-7, 2020 – Hosted by UW-Madison 
 
March 5, 2020 – In Madison* (Optional) 
 
April 2-3, 2020 – Hosted by UW-Green Bay  In Madison* 
 
June 4-5, 2020 – Hosted by UW-Milwaukee 
 
August 20-21, 2020 – In Madison* 
 
October 8-9, 2020 – Hosted by UW-River Falls 
 
November 5, 2020— In Madison* (Optional) 
 
December 10-11, 2020 – In Madison* 


	I. All Regents (Thursday)
	Item I.4. Presentation and Discussion: Wisconsin's Achievement Gap/Opportunity Gap

	II. All Regents (Friday)
	Annual NCAA Division I Athletics Report - UW-Madison
	Item 12. Summary
	Item 12. Attachment A:  2018-19 UW-Madison Athletics Report

	Wisconsin Public Media: "Telling Wisconsin Stories"
	Item 13. Summary
	Item 13. Attachment A: Coverage Maps
	Item 13. Attachment B: WPR Annual Report 2019
	Item 13. Attachment C: PBS Wisconsin 2019 Report

	Approval of Administrative Code Proposed Rule Order, Economic Impact Analysis and Fiscal Estimate, Notice of Submittal to the Legislative Council, and Notice of Public Hearing for Ch. UWS 17, Wis. Admin. Code, "Nonacademic Student Misconduct"
	Item 14. Summary
	Item 14. Attachment A - Proposed Rule Order (UWS 17)
	Item 14. Attachment B - Fiscal Estimate & Economic Impact Analysis
	Item 14. Attachment C - Notice of Submission to Legislative Council Rules Clearinghouse
	Item 14. Attachment D - Meeting Notice: Public Hearing on Revisions to Chapter UWS 17, Wis. Admin. Code

	Approval of Administrative Code Proposed Rule Order, Economic Impact Analysis and Fiscal Estimate, Notice of Submittal to the Legislative Council, and Notice of Public Hearing for Ch. UWS 18, Wis. Admin. Code, "Conduct on University Lands"
	Item 15. Summary
	Item 15. Attachment A - Proposed Rule Order (UWS 18)
	Item 15. Attachment B - Fiscal Estimate & Economic Impact Analysis
	Item 15. Attachment C - Notice of Submission to Legislative Council Rules Clearinghouse
	Item 15. Attachment D - Meeting Notice: Public Hearing on Revisions to Chapter UWS 18, Wis. Admin. Code


	For Reference
	Board of Regents Committee List
	Meeting Calendar (2019-2020)


